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STATE OF MISSOURI

KATHY HANDING, LORI HEWLING,
)

CARYN FENNELL, KATHARINA
)

FINKMAN, LINDLEY CONTOURS, LLC,
)

DEBORAH ANDJUSIC, SKOBEL CONYERS
)
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)
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)

GILMORE, RACHEL JOHNSTON,
)  JURY TRIAL DEMANDED
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)

CATHY MCGINNIS, MICHELLE
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) 

SUSAN WRIGHT, LISA SALINES, KIM
)

LAPOLLA, JOY CHRISTINE CABALLERO,
)
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)
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)
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)
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)
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JAMES E. HOGG, doing business as
)

Franchise Visions,
)


)



(Serve:

7231 S. 33rd Street


)



Lincoln, NE 68516)


)








)

Defendants.
)

SECOND AMENDED PETITION FOR DAMAGES

Come now plaintiffs and for their causes of action against defendants state as follows:

Introduction

1. Contours Express, Inc. was incorporated in the State of Kentucky to sell franchises for the operation of a women’s-only fitness center.

2. Contours Express, Inc. began selling such franchises in July of 1998.

3. Contours Express, LLC, was formed in June of 2005, under the laws of the State of Delaware to acquire the assets of Contours Express, Inc

4. On June 6, 2005, Contours Express, Inc. filed its Amendment to Articles of Incorporation with the Kentucky Secretary of State to change its name AABB Fitness Holdings, Inc.

5. Contours Express, LLC, continued to grant franchises in the fitness and weight loss industry.

6. That Defendants had commissioned sales people and independent contractors who provided prospects with a written prospectus, known as a Uniform Capital Franchise Offering Circular or “UFOC,” regarding this opportunity.

7. The Contours Express UFOC dramatically understated the cost of building out and operating a location.   It claimed that franchisees would receive discount pricing that sometimes didn’t exist or was less than what Contours expressed.  

8. The UFOC failed to disclose all of the franchisees who had left the system.   

9. The owners of Contours Express and their representatives also made “earnings claims” or verbal pitches regarding profitability, which are prohibited by the Federal Trade Commission, to entice the Plaintiffs to purchase franchises and their lenders to finance them.  

10. In reliance on these misrepresentations the Plaintiffs paid Contours Express a franchise fee and entered into franchise agreement. 

11. The franchisees were also required to utilize the services of certain contractors by the franchisor who failed to disclose the exact relationship between the contractor and the franchisor.

12. Once hooked, the franchisee had no way out.  The typical franchisee’s working capital was exhausted soon after they opened their location and most could not service a debt load of 50 to 100 percent greater than they had been led to believe.

13. Many franchisees sought to transfer their stores or to sell them, but were required to pay to the franchisor a fee of $2,000.00.

14. The franchisor failed to assist any of the franchisees in selling their locations because they would receive a higher franchise fee if the franchisee closed without selling their location and the franchisor could then sell the territory to a new franchisee.

15. In addition, the franchisor provided little or no support to the franchisees as it agreed to do under the franchise agreements signed by the parties.  In fact, once the stores were opened, very few of the franchisees were ever visited by representatives of the franchisor.

16. Contours Express utilized the services of James E. Hogg, who did business as Franchise Visions, to sell franchises on its behalf.  That Franchise Visions on behalf of the franchisor made certain representations as to the cost of operating a franchise and the profitability of franchises.  That these misrepresentations were authorized, endorsed, and ratified by the franchisor.  

PARTIES
17. Claimant Kathy Handing is a citizen and resident of the State of Missouri.  Kathy Handing owned and operated a Contours Express location at 1057 Regency Parkway, St. Charles, MO  63303.  Kathy Handing also owned and operated another Contours Express franchise located at 108 Triad Center West, O’Fallon, MO  63366.

18. Claimants Lori Hewling and Caryn Fennell are citizens and residents of the State of Georgia.  Lori Hewling and Caryn Fennell owned and operated a Contours Express location at 3466 Cobb Parkway Suite 120, Acworth, GA  30101.

19. Claimant Katharina Finkman is a citizen and resident of the State of New York.  Katharina Finkman owned and operated a Contours Express location at 294 Portion Rd., Lake Ronkonkoma, NY  11779.  Katharina Finkman also owned and operated another Contours Express franchise located at 2532 Middle Country Road, Centereach, NY  11720.

20. Claimant Lindley Contours, LLC is a limited liability company organized and existing in the State of Oregon.  Lindley Contours, LLC owned and operated 3 (three) Contours Express locations at (i) 2280 Stewart Pky., Roseburg, OR  97470, (ii) 1510 Coburg Road, Eugene, OR  97401, and (iii) 2864 Williamette St., Eugene, OR  97405.

21. Claimant Deborah Andjusic (formerly Lapp) is a citizen and resident of the State of Michigan.  Deborah Andjusic owned and operated a Contours Express location at 20964 Mack Ave., Grosse Pointe Woods, MI  48236.

22. Claimant Skobel Conyers, LLC is a limited liability company organized and existing in the State of Ohio.  Skobel Conyers, LLC owned and operated a Contours Express location at 4878 Thompson Rd., Gahanna, OH  43230.

23. Claimant Susan White (formerly Johnson) is a citizen and resident of the State of Arizona.  Susan White owned and operated a Contours Express location at 1450 West Guadalupe Road Suite 122, Gilbert, AZ  85233.

24. Claimant Kathy Froehlich is a citizen and resident of the State of North Carolina.  Kathy Froehlich owned and operated a Contours Express location at 4117 Davis Dr, Morrisville, NC 27560.

25. Claimants Kathleen and Carlos Delgado are citizens and residents of the State of Arizona.  Kathleen and Carlos Delgado owned and operated a Contours Express location at 5115 North Dysart Rd Suite 206, Litchfield Park, AZ  85340.

26. Claimant K & N Enterprises, Inc is a corporation organized and existing in the State of California.  K & N Enterprises, Inc owned and operated a Contours Express location at 1585 Butte House Rd Suite B, Yuba City, CA  95993.

27. Claimants Linda McDonald and Diane Cotter are citizens and residents of the State of Michigan.  Linda McDonald and Diane Cotter owned and operated a Contours Express location at 33089 23 Mile Rd, New Baltimore, MI  48047.

28. Claimant Lori Hernke is a citizen and resident of the State of Wisconsin. Lori Hernke owned and operated a Contours Express location at 940 Hansen Road, Green Bay, WI  54304.

29. Claimant Tammy Frazier is citizen and resident of the State of Kentucky.  Tammy Frazier owns and operates a Contours Express location at 116 South Keenland Dr, Suite 1, Richmond,  KY  40475.

30. Claimant Got Weights, LLC is a limited liability company organized and existing in the State of Washington.  Got Weights, LLC owned and operated a Contours Express location at 1525 A Street NE Suite 107, Auburn, WA  98002.

31. Claimant Susan Gimigliano is a citizen and resident of the State of Pennsylvania.  Susan Gimigliano owned and operated a Contours Express location at 5040 William Penn Highway, Monroeville, PA  15146.

32. Claimant Simply Hers Fitness Consulting, Inc is a corporation organized and existing in the State of Georgia.  Simply Hers Fitness Consulting, Inc owned and operated a Contours Express location at 10955 Jones Bridge Rd Suite 119, Alpharetta, GA  30022.

33. Claimants Alison Gilmore and Rachel Johnston are citizens and residents of the State of New Jersey.  Alison Gilmore and Rachel Johnston owned and operated a Contours Express location at 606 Route 71, 2nd Floor, Brielle, NJ  08730.

34. Claimant Sempier Wetzel, LLC is a limited liability company organized and existing in the State of New Jersey.  Sempier Wetzel, LLC owned and operated a Contours Express location at 303 Walter E. Foran Blvd, Flemington, NJ  08822.

35. Claimant Cathy McGinnis is a citizen and resident of the State of North Carolina.  Cathy McGinnis owned and operated a Contours Express location at 118 South Highway 16, Triangle Crossroads, Denver, NC  28037.

36. Claimant Michelle Pryce-Laskos is a citizen and resident of the State of Michigan.  Michelle Pryce-Laskos owned and operated a Contours Express location at 6515 Commerce Rd, West Bloomfield, MI  48324.

37. Claimant Victoria Kowalewsky is a citizen and resident of the State of California.  Victoria Kowalewsky owned and operated a Contours Express location at 3033 Bristol Street Suite F, Costa Mesa, CA  92626.

38. Claimant Jo-Ann Hudson is a citizen and resident of the State of California.  Jo-Ann Hudson owned and operated a Contours Express location at 6901 La Palma Ave., Buena Park, CA  90620.

39. Claimant Fitness Plus, LLC is a limited liability company organized and existing in the State of Missouri.  Fitness Plus, LLC owned and operated a Contours Express location at 5496 Baumgartner Rd Suite 125, St. Louis, MO  63129

40. Claimants Susan Wright and Lisa Salines are citizens and residents of the State of Massachusetts.  Susan Wright and Lisa Salines owned and operated a Contours Express location at 383 Lowell Street, Wakefield, MA  01880.

41. Claimant Kim Lapolla is a citizen and resident of the State of Michigan.  Kim Lapolla owned and operated a Contours Express location at 31396 Harper Ave, Saint Clair Shores, MI  48082.  Kim Lapolla also owned and operated a Contours Express location at 16989 18 Mile Rd, Clinton Township, MI  48038.

42. Claimant Joy Christine Caballero is a citizen and resident of the State of California.  Joy Christine Caballero owned and operated a Contours Express location at 8951 N Cedar Ave, Fresno, CA 93720

43. Claimant Phyllis Duarte is a citizen and resident of the State of California.  Phyllis Duarte owned and operated a Contours Express location at 7555Pacific Ave #251, Stockton, CA  95207.

44. Claimant Elite Fitness Group, LLC is a limited liability company organized and existing in the State of New Jersey.  Elite Fitness Group, LLC owned and operated a Contours Express location at 800K Denow Road, Pennington, NJ  08534.

45. Claimant Jan & Jill, LLC is a limited liability company organized and existing in the State of Ohio.  Jan & Jill, LLC owned and operated 2 (two) Contours Express locations at (i) 8251 Chippewa Road, Brecksville, OH 44141 and (ii) 8900 Darrow Road Suite H-105, Twinsburg, OH  44087.

46. Claimants Don and Janis Flanigan are citizens and residents of the State of California.  Don and Janis Flanigan owned and operated a Contours Express location at 6903 Katella Ave, Cypress, CA  90630.

47. Claimant 4 Ladies, LLC is a limited liability company organized and existing in the State of California.  4 Ladies, LLC owned and operated a Contours Express location at 11318 South Street, Cerritos, CA  90703.

48. Claimants David Thompson and Kathy Morgan-Thompson are citizens and residents of the State of Connecticut.  David Thompson and Kathy Morgan-Thompson owned and operated a Contours Express location at 117 Washington Avenue, North Haven, CT  06473.

49. Claimants Denise Thurmond and Shauuna Harrelson are citizens and residents of the State of Texas.  Denise Thurmond and Shauuna Harrelson owned and operated a Contours Express location at 17817 FM 529, Suite 135, Houston, TX  77095.

50. Claimant Ann Marie McVea and Vincent Marino are a citizens and residents of the State of New York.  Ann Marie McVea and Vincent Marino owned and operated a Contours Express location at 65 East Merrick Road, Amityville, NY  11701.

51. Claimant Ruth Ann Roach is a citizen and resident of the State of Michigan.  Ruth Ann Roach owned and operated a Contours Express located at 1754 Central Park Dr., Okemas, MI 48864.  Ruth Ann Roach also owned and operated another Contours Express location in Jackson, MI.

52. Claimants Nansi Barrie and Ruzena Danciger are citizens and residents of the State of New York.  Nansi Barrie and Ruzena Danciger owned and operated a Contours Express location at 116 East 57th Street, New York, NY  10022.

53. Claimant G&G Fitness, LLC is a limited liability company organized and existing in the State of Kentucky.  G&G Fitness, LLC owned and operated a Contours Express location at 800 South Main St, Suite E, Nicholasville, KY  40356.

54. Claimant Shanna Sayre is a citizen and resident of the State of California.  Shanna Sayre owned and operated a Contours Express location at 2836 Bellflower Blvd, Long Beach, CA  90815.

55. Claimant JenWest, Inc is a corporation organized and existing in the State of North Carolina.  JenWest, Inc owned and operated a Contours Express location at 1165 East Marion St, Shelby, NC  28150.

56. Claimant Slim Chicks, Inc is a corporation organized and existing in the State of Texas.  Slim Chicks, Inc owned and operated a Contours Express location at 559 East Interstate 30, Rockwall, TX  75087.

57. Claimant Jim Cloyd is a citizen and resident of the State of Indiana.  Jim Cloyd owned and operated a Contours Express location at 475 East Northfield Drive, Suite C, Brownsburg, IN  46112.

58. Claimant J.P. Harrison, Inc is a corporation organized and existing in the State of Michigan.  J.P. Harrison, Inc owned and operated a Contours Express location at 6558 North Wayne Road, Westland, MI  48185.

59. Claimant Kathryn James Investments, Inc is a corporation organized and existing in the State of Texas.  Kathryn James Investments, Inc owned and operated a Contours Express location at 802 South MacArthur Blvd, Suite 101, Coppell, TX  75019.

60. Claimant Deborah Leahy is a citizen and resident of the State of Michigan.  Deborah Leahy owned and operated a Contours Express location at 725 Brookside Drive, Lansing, MI  48917.

61. Claimant Nelligan Ellis Management, Inc is a corporation organized and existing in the State of Michigan.  Nelligan Ellis Management, Inc owned and operated a Contours Express location at 31509 Cherry Hill, Westland, MI  48185.

62. Claimant Next Steps, LLC is a limited liability company organized and existing in the State of Arizona.  Next Steps, LLC owned and operated a Contours Express location at 350 East Bell Road, Suite J-8, Phoenix, AZ  85022.

63. Claimants Mary and Kenneth Taylor are citizens and residents of the State of California.  Mary and Kenneth Taylor owned and operated a Contours Express location at 2735 East Carson St., Suite A, Lakewood, CA  90712.

64. Claimant Sandy Roney is a citizen and resident of the State of Wisconsin.  Sandy Roney owned and operated a Contours Express location at 529 West Main St, Lake Geneva, WI  53147.

65. Claimant Edricka Burnett is a citizen and resident of the State of Georgia.  Edricka Burnett owned and operated a Contours Express location at 2803 Wrightsboro Road, Suite 35, Augusta, GA  30909.

66. Claimant New Beginning, LLC is a limited liability company organized and existing in the State of Virginia.  New Beginning, LLC owned and operated a Contours Express location at 1209 Benns Church Blvd, Cypress Run Plaza, Smithfield, VA  23430.  New Beginning, LLC owned a second Contours Express location in Suffolk, VA.

67. Claimant Vincent Pimpinella is a citizen and resident of the State of New York.  Vincent Pimpinella owned and operated a Contours Express location at 852 Long Island Ave, Deer Park, NY  11729.

68. Claimant Chandra Sales-Taylor is a citizen and resident of the State of Tennessee.  Chandra Sales-Taylor owned and operated a Contours Express location in Hendersonville, TN. 

69. Claimant Sonia Sharp is a citizen and resident of the State of California.  Sonia Sharp owned and operated a Contours Express location at 1727 E. Daily Drive, Suite C, Camarillo, CA  93010.

70. Claimants Tori and Jason Evans are citizens and residents of the State of Maryland.  Tori and Jason Evans owned and operated a Contours Express location at 1561 Potomac Ave, Hagerstown, MD  21742.

71. Claimant Great Life, Inc is a corporation organized and existing in the State of Virginia.  Great Life, Inc owned and operated a Contours Express location at Kempsville Road, Suite 107, Virginia Beach, VA  23464.

72. Claimant Brendia Fink-Franklin is a citizen and resident of the State of Ohio.  Brendia Fink-Franklin owned and operated a Contours Express location at 5654 Mayberry Square, Sylvania, OH  43560.

JURISDICTION
73. Jurisdiction in this court is proper in that defendants entered into written franchise agreements within the State of Missouri and thereby subjected itself to the jurisdiction of the courts within the State of Missouri.

ALLEGATIONS COMMON TO ALL COUNTS
I. Contours Express

74. Contours Express, Inc. was formed in July of 1998 to franchise the Contours Express concept by Darren Carter, Charles Woodward, and Mike Widener.  Contours Express was 80% owned by Darren Carter and 20% owned by Charles Woodward.

75. That Mr. Carter and Mr. Woodward along with Mr. Widener began to sell franchises in July of 1998

76. In order to sell franchises, Contours Express, Inc. had to comply with Federal and State franchising rules.   Principal among these is the Federal Trade Commissions franchise disclosure trade regulation rule “FTC Rule.”

II. FTC Rule

77. Promulgated on December 21, 1978, the FTC Rule is designed to require sellers of franchises to provided prospective investors with the information they need to make an informed investment decision.  The FTC Rule permits franchisors to use a uniform disclosure format which has been adopted by every state known as the “Uniform Franchise Offering Circular” or “UFOC.”  Each topic of disclosure in a UFOC is referred to as an “Item” numbered 1 to 23.  Some of the most basic Items are the following:

78. Item 6 mandates detailed disclosure of all fees payable by the franchisee during the life of the franchise relationship including franchise royalties, advertising fees, and any payments the franchisor receives to construct, remodel, or equip the franchisee’s business premises.

79. Item 7 requires the franchisor to describe in detail the expenditures the franchisee should anticipate making on or before the commencement of business operations.  The franchisor must be able to support its estimate from the actual experience of its franchisors.  Fern, Costello and Asbill, Vol. 1 Franchising Law Practice and Forms, at 6-15 Specialty Technical Publishers (2005).

80. Item 8 requires disclosure of any restrictions imposed by the franchisor on the franchisee’s purchase of products and services. If an obligation is imposed in practice, disclosure must me made, even if there is no contractual requirement. Id.
81. Item 19 concerns “earnings claims” or representations of a franchisee’s prospective financial performance.  While the FTC permits a franchisor to make earnings claims (though most reputable franchisors do not), the FTC Rule prohibits the making of earnings claims except as part of a detailed disclosure in Item 19. 16 C.F.R.  436.1.  Earnings claims in an advertising brochure, in a slide presentation, in a verbal sales presentation or on the back of any envelope, are prohibited.  Vol. 1 Franchising Law Practice and Forms, at 6-23.

82. Item 20 requires the franchisor to fully disclose information concerning its current and former franchisees, including the number of franchisees whose ownership was transferred or whose franchise was canceled, terminated, or not renewed or have ceased doing business in the system.  A pattern of abandonment, sales, terminations and non-renewals indicates a sick franchise.

III. The Timing of Federal Disclosure

83. In addition to providing a format for disclosures, the FTC Rule specifies when a disclosure document must be given to the prospective franchisee.  Such timing requirements are intended to ensure that franchisees have a “cooling off” period in which to evaluate the disclosure document before paying any monies to the franchisor and before executing agreements binding on the prospective franchisee.

84. Under the Rule, the prospective franchisee must be provided a disclosure document upon the earliest to occur of any of the following three events:

a. The first face to face meeting with a franchisee;

b. 10 business days prior to the execution of a franchise agreement; or

c. 10 business days prior to payment by a prospective franchisee.

85. Violations of the FTC Rule are considered unfair or deceptive acts within the meaning of Section 5 of the Federal Trade Commission Act.

IV. State Disclosure Laws

86. The FTC Rule does not preempt state disclosure laws to the extent that they provide greater protection that it does.  Several do.

87. California. Under the California Franchise Investment Law, it is unlawful for nay person to offer a franchise in California by means of any written or oral communication that is (i) not enumerated in the filed UFOC and (ii) which includes an untrue statement of material fact or a material omission.  California Corporation Code 31201, reproduced at 1 Business Franchise Guide (CCH) 3050.54.

88. Any person who violates 31201 of the Code is liable for damages to any person who, while relying upon such statement, purchases a franchise.  Id. at 31301, reproduced at 1 Business Franchise Guide (CCH) 3050.61.

89. Every person who directly or indirectly controls a person liable under 31301, including (i) every principal, executive officer or director of the corporation, (ii) every person occupying a similar status or performing a similar function, and (iii) every employee or person who materially aids in the act or transaction, is liable jointly and severally with and to the same extent as such person.  Id. ay 31302, reproduced at 1 Business Franchise Guide (CCH) 3050.62.

90. Illinois Section 705/5(2) of the Illinois Franchise Disclosure Act of 1987 makes it unlawful for any person to offer to sell any franchise without providing the prospective franchisee a copy of a disclosure statement meeting the requirements of the Act and registered by the Administrator of the State of Illinois at least 14 days prior to execution of any binding franchise agreement.

91. Any person who offers or sells a franchise in violation of the Illinois Act shall be liable to the franchisee and may be sued by the franchisee for damages and for recession.  Illinois Franchise Act 705/26, reproduced at 1 Business Franchise Guide, 3130.26.

V. Contours Express Sales Efforts

92. Contours Express failed to undertake the traditional franchise strategy of concentrating resources on a select metropolitan area or region in order to build up number of units and corresponding brand recognition.  Contours Express and its sales representatives sought out prospects across the United States who could afford a relatively low franchise fee.  

93. The sales pitch was hard.  Franchisees were led to believe that stores could be opened and operated on a fraction of the actual cost.  

94. The potential franchisees were led to believe that they could reach a break even point within a few months of opening their location.  

95. The Contours Express UFOC was equally misleading.  It disclosed some but not all of the franchisees who had left the system or closed their doors.   

96. A prospective franchisee relied on the earning statement in the UFOC at their peril.  Most franchisees discovered that upon opening and operating their location, the numbers contained in the UFOC were grossly underestimated.  

97. In several instances individuals were led to believe that they would need $15,000 in operating capital until their locations would break even.   However, that number was greatly underestimated which required the franchisees to invest additional money to keep their locations open.

98. In the 2003 UFOC Contours Express estimated that the estimated initial investment to open one of its franchises ranged from $31,190 to $45,000.  

99. The UFOC from 2006 raised the projected initial investment to $43,800 to $75,320.

100. Those numbers grossly underestimated the need for working capital to keep the locations running while they obtained members.  

VI. Opening and Operating a Contours Express Franchise

101. Once a prospect signed a franchise agreement and had received their financing, Contours Express, which included no persons residing outside of Kentucky, provided virtually none of the services normally expected from a franchisor.

102. Contours Express provided little or no assistance with site selection, with lease negotiation, or site development.  

103. Once the site was selected and the lease was signed, Contours Express required its franchisees to purchase their equipment through it, claiming that their buying power allowed it to purchase equipment at a substantial discount.  In fact, the price charged to a franchise sometimes exceeded the price that a customer could purchase the same equipment from the same vendor on its own.  In addition, there were exorbitant shipping charges for shipping the equipment to the franchisee which were not disclosed prior to the franchise agreement being signed.  

104. Franchisees would often exhaust their working capital prior to or shortly after opening their location.  Many times the grand openings would occur without the training and grand opening assistance promised in the franchise agreement.  Calls to corporate office for assistance were greeted with hostility or unreturned.

105. Not withstanding the foregoing, Contours Express continued to demand payment of its flat monthly franchise royalty of $395.  

VII. Prosperity of Contours Express and The Failure of Its System

106. According to the 2006 UFOC Contours Express had twenty two (22) franchises operating at the end of 2000, thirty three (33) operating at the end of 2001, sixty six (66) operating at the end of 2002, one hundred ten (110) operating at the end of 2003, two hundred forty nine (249) at the end of 2004, and two hundred forty five (245) at the end of 2005. The revenues of Contours Express continued to rise during that same period.  In 2002, Contours Express had a gross profit of $1,070,003; in 2003, the gross profit was $2,798,068.74 and by December 31, 2005, the gross profit was $1,853,138.  

107. On June 3, 2005, Contours Express, Inc. (a sub-S Corporation formed in Kentucky) contributed substantially all of its assets to Contours Express, LLC in exchange for 100% ownership in Contours Express.  Contours Express, Inc, then sold 65% of its ownership in Contours Express to PGCE, Inc.

108. That PGCE, Inc, paid approximately $11 million dollars for a 65% share of ownership in Contours Express, LLC.

109. While Contours Express, LLC has continued to prosper the franchises have not.  A franchise facing eminent demise is provided no good options by Contours Express.

110. If a franchisee fails to make a payment to the franchisor, it is subject to termination of its franchise.  Upon termination, Contours Express has the right to purchase any or all of the assets of the franchisee.  

111. When a franchisee was struggling and wanting to sell its location, it received no support from corporate office, which instead looked at obtaining a full franchise fee rather than a transfer fee if the location was sold.  

FRANCHISOR’S RESPONSIBILITIES UNDER

FRANCHISE AGREEMENT

112. That under the franchise agreements signed by each and every plaintiff herein, the franchisor agreed to assume certain responsibilities. 

113. That these responsibilities included each of the following:

a. Market and Site Selection: Franchisor agreed to use reasonable efforts to help the franchisee analyze and evaluate a proposed site for proposed unit.

b. Unit Development: Franchisor agreed to consult and advise the franchisee on site selection, procure necessary licenses or permits, assist in ordering initial inventory, and manage construction and refurbishing of the franchise unit layout.

c. Opening Schedule: Franchisor agreed to consult and advise franchisee on the steps necessary for franchisee to open the franchise unit according to the mutually agreed upon date.

d. Confidential Operation Manual: Franchisor agreed to loan franchisee one copy of franchisor’s manual during the franchise term for the franchise agreement, which included the mandatory and suggested specifications, standards, and operation procedures prescribed by the franchisor.

e. Training: Once the franchisee was in possession of the approved location, but before the franchisee may open the unit, the franchisor agreed to provide the franchisee with up to one additional employee and, if applicable, one initial training course, the cost which is a part of the initial franchise fee provided the franchise employee who attends the course must attend so simultaneously with the franchisee.

f. Opening Assistance: Franchisor agreed to provide the franchisee with one of its representatives for supervisory assistance for guidance for three days for the opening and franchisee may request and franchisor may provide additional assistance provided the franchisee shall reimburse all costs.

g. Post Opening: Franchisor agreed to assist the franchisee with guidance and assistance with the opening “from time to time as deemed necessary by the franchisor.”  The visits will be completed with field visits to the franchisees unit, company training programs and meetings, confidential manual updates, written correspondence and/or by telephone. Such operating assistance was to consist of advice and guidance with respect to pricing, purchasing, an approved list of specifications, manufacturers, suppliers, services, products, materials, and supplies.  The franchisor further agreed to assist the franchisee from time to time regarding operating problems of franchisee’s unit as disclosed by reports submitted by franchisee or inspections made by franchisor.

h. Periodic Visits:  Franchisor agreed to make periodic visits to the franchisee’s unit for consultation, assistance, and guidance to the unit from time to time as deemed appropriate by the franchisor.  During such visits the franchisor was to outline in written reports any suggestions, changes, or improvements for the operation or management of the franchise unit or detail any defaults in the operations which become evident as a result of any such visit.  Additional guidance as deemed appropriate by the franchisor was to be furnished in the form of franchisor’s confidential operation manual, bulletins or other written materials, telephone consultation and/or consultations at the offices of the franchisor or the franchisee’s unit in conjunction with an inspection of the franchisee’s unit.

114. In general, the franchisor assumed the duty to monitor the operations of its franchisees and provide assistance and guidance when necessary by either requests from the franchisee or franchisor’s own inspection of the franchisee’s operations.

COUNT 1: KATHY HANDING

FRAUD IN THE INDUCEMENT

COMES NOW, Kathy Handing and for Count 1 of her cause of action against Defendants, states as follows:

115. Plaintiff realleges and incorporates herein by reference each and every allegation contained in Paragraphs 1 through 114 of the Petition for Damages.
116. That Kathy Handing bought an existing Contours Express franchise location at 1057 Regency Parkway, St. Charles, MO  63303. 
117. Prior to purchasing her franchise, Plaintiff discussed the purchase of the franchise with Bill Helton, an employee of the franchisor.  That Mr. Helton provided the Plaintiff with a UFOC which contained a list of anticipated expenses for operating a franchise unit.  
118. That Kathy Handing also bought and operated a second Contours Express franchise located at 108 Triad Center West, O’Fallon, MO  63366.  
119. Plaintiff also discussed the purchase of the second franchise location with the employees of the franchisor and was again provided with a UFOC.  
120. That the representations contained within the UFOC concerning the expenses required to operate a franchise location were false and Defendants knew them to be false.  
121. Defendants intended for Plaintiff to rely on said misrepresentations and in so relying, Plaintiff did so, reasonably and justifiably.
122. That after Plaintiff purchased her first location, she underwent training at the headquarters of the franchisor.  
123. That during said training, Mike Widener, an employee of the franchisor, made a representation to the Plaintiff that she would be earning fifty thousand dollars ($50,000.00) per year in less than one (1) year.
124. That said representation was false and Defendants knew them to be false.
125. That Defendants intended for Plaintiff to rely on said misrepresentations and in so relying, Plaintiff did so, reasonably and justifiably.
126. That as a result of the misrepresentations and Plaintiff’s reliance thereon, she entered into franchise agreements with the franchisor.  That as a direct and proximate result of the misrepresentations of the Defendants, Plaintiff sustained damage.
WHEREFORE, for the foregoing reasons, Plaintiff prays judgment against Defendants, and each of them, in a sum that is fair and reasonable in excess of $25,000.00, her costs herein expended, and for such other relief the Court deems just and proper.

COUNT 2: KATHY HANDING

BREACH OF CONTRACT

COMES NOW, Kathy Handing and for Count 2 of her cause of action against Defendants, states as follows:

127. Plaintiff realleges and incorporates by reference as a fully set forth herein of each and every allegation contained in Paragraphs 1 through 114 of the Petition for Damages.  

128. That Plaintiff, Kathy Handing, and Defendant, Contours Express, LLC, entered into written franchise agreements concerning the operation of her two locations.  

129. That pursuant to that franchise agreement, franchisor agreed to provide post-opening support.  

130. That the franchisor never visited the Plaintiff’s locations.

131. That Defendants provided no operational assistance at any time and made no inspections of Plaintiff’s locations.  

132. That on several occasions Plaintiff called and left messages for various individuals at the franchisor’s office, which were either not returned or there was no assistance provided in any follow-up. 

133. That Plaintiff forwarded numerous emails to corporate, including to someone known as Mr. Neff, and said emails responded in no assistance from the franchisor. 

134. That Defendants failed to provide any guidance, assistance, or other resources to assist Plaintiff in the operation of her locations.

135. That Defendants breached their contract with Plaintiff in additional respects including the implied covenant of good faith and fair dealing.  

136. That as a direct and proximate result of the breach of Defendants as aforesaid, Plaintiff sustained damage.

WHEREFORE, for the foregoing reasons, Plaintiff prays judgment against Defendants and each of them, in a sum that is fair and reasonable in excess of $25,000.00, her costs herein expended, and for such other relief that the Court deems just and proper.

COUNT 3: LORI HEWLING AND CARYN FENNELL
FRAUD IN THE INDUCEMENT


COME NOW, Lori Hewling and Caryn Fennell and for their cause of action against Defendants, states as follows:

137. Plaintiffs reallege and incorporate herein by reference each and every allegation contained in Paragraphs 1 through 114 of the Petition for Damages.

138. That Lori Hewling and Caryn Fennell bought and operated two Contours Express franchises located in Acworth, Georgia and Deland, Florida. 

139.  That Plaintiffs were provided with a UFOC by Mike Widener for the Deland, Florida location in June of 2005 and the Acworth, Georgia location in May of 2005. 

140. That prior to signing the franchise agreement, and after receiving the UFOC, Mike Widener, an employee of the franchisor, represented to both Plaintiffs that they should be able to replace their incomes within in a period of six (6) to twelve (12) months.

141. That the UFOC received by the Plaintiffs for both locations made certain claims as to the expenses required to operate a franchise location. 

142. That said representation within the UFOC were false and Defendants knew them to be false.  

143. Defendants intended for Plaintiffs to rely on said misrepresentations and in so relying, Plaintiffs did so, reasonably and justifiably

144. That as a result of the misrepresentations and Plaintiffs’ reliance thereon, they entered into a franchise agreement with the franchisor.  That as a direct and proximate result of the misrepresentations of the Defendants, Plaintiffs sustained damage.

WHEREFORE, for the foregoing reasons, Plaintiffs pray judgment against Defendants, and each of them, in a sum that is fair and reasonable in excess of $25,000.00, their costs herein expended, and for such other relief the Court deems just and proper.

COUNT 4: LORI HEWLING AND CARYN FENNELL

BREACH OF CONTRACT

COME NOW, Lori Hewling and Caryn Fennell and for their cause of action against Defendants, states as follows:

145. Plaintiffs reallege and incorporate by reference as a fully set forth herein of each and every allegation contained in Paragraphs 1 through 114 of the Petition for Damages.

146.  That Plaintiffs, Lori Hewling and Caryn Fennell, and Defendant, Contours Express, LLC, entered into a written franchise agreements concerning the operation of their locations.  

147. That Defendant provided one employee for two days at the Deland, Florida locations prior to opening and provided no employees for the Acworth, Georgia location.

148. The Acworth, Georgia location opened in February of 2005, no support was provided for the opening or at anytime prior to the opening.  

149. After Plaintiffs complained for three (3) months to the franchisor, trainers were finally sent in May of 2005 for two days.

150. Franchisor never made any inspections at either location.

151. Most calls of the Plaintiffs to the franchisor were not returned and most of their inquiries were unanswered.

152. Plaintiffs requested additional training besides the initial training, but no such training was received.

153.  The last few months prior to the Plaintiffs closing their locations, the franchisor employed a monthly conference call that was employed as training, but was actually used as announcements and promotions of corporate products and services.

154. The franchisor never contacted or questioned the Plaintiffs as to how much it took to start their franchises.

155. That Defendants breached their contract with Plaintiffs in additional respects including, the implied covenant of good faith and fair dealing.  

156. That as a direct and proximate result of the breach of Defendants as aforesaid, Plaintiffs sustained damage.

WHEREFORE, for the foregoing reasons, Plaintiffs pray judgment against Defendants, and each of them, in a sum that is fair and reasonable in excess of $25,000.00, their costs herein expended, and for such other relief that the Court deems just and proper.

COUNT 5: KATHARINA FINKMAN
FRAUD IN THE INDUCEMENT


COMES NOW, Katharina Finkman and for her cause of action against Defendants, states as follows:

157. Plaintiff realleges and incorporates herein by reference each and every allegation contained in Paragraphs 1 through 111 of the Petition for Damages.

158. That Katharina Finkman bought and operated a Contours Express franchise located at 294 Portion Rd, Lake Ronkonkoma, NY 11779.  Katharina Finkman also bought and operated an additional Contours Express franchise location at 2532 Middle Country Road, Centereach, NY 11720.  That at the time Plaintiff purchased these locations she was provided with the UFOC by Defendants.  That said UFOC made certain claims as to the expenses required to operate a franchise location.  That said representation within the UFOC were false and Defendants knew them to be false.  

159. Defendants intended for Plaintiff to rely on said misrepresentations and in so relying, Plaintiff did so, reasonably and justifiably.

160. That as a result of the misrepresentations and Plaintiff’s reliance thereon, she entered into a franchise agreement with the franchisor.  That as a direct and proximate result of the misrepresentations of the Defendants, Plaintiff sustained damage.

WHEREFORE, for the foregoing reasons, Plaintiff prays judgment against Defendants, and each of them, in a sum that is fair and reasonable in excess of $25,000.00, her costs herein expended, and for such other relief the Court deems just and proper.

COUNT 6: KATHARINA FINKMAN

BREACH OF CONTRACT

COMES NOW, Katharina Finkman and for her cause of action against Defendants, states as follows:

161. Plaintiff realleges and incorporates by reference as a fully set forth herein of each and every allegation contained in Paragraphs 1 through 111 of the Petition for Damages.  That Plaintiff, Katharina Finkman, and Defendant, Contours Express, LLC, entered into a written franchise agreement concerning the operation of her locations.  That pursuant to that franchise agreement, franchisor agreed to provide post-opening support.  That Defendants failed to provide any guidance, assistance, or other resources to assist Plaintiff in the operation of her locations.

162. That Defendants breached their contract with Plaintiff in additional respects including the implied covenant of good faith and fair dealing.  

163. That as a direct and proximate result of the breach of Defendants as aforesaid, Plaintiff sustained damage

WHEREFORE, for the foregoing reasons, Plaintiff prays judgment against Defendants, and each of them, in a sum that is fair and reasonable in excess of $25,000.00, her costs herein expended, and for such other relief that the Court deems just and proper.

COUNT 7: LINDLEY CONTOURS, LLC
FRAUD IN THE INDUCEMENT


COMES NOW, Lindley Contours, LLC and for its cause of action against Defendants, states as follows:

164. Plaintiff realleges and incorporates herein by reference each and every allegation contained in Paragraphs 1 through 114 of the Petition for Damages.

165. That Lindley Contours, LLC bought and operated a Contours Express franchise located at 2280 Stewart Parkway, Roseburg, OR 97470.  Plaintiff also bought and operated another Contours Express franchise located at 1510 Coburg Road, Eugene, OR  97401.  A third Contours Express franchise located at 2864 Williamette St, Eugene, OR 97405 was bought and operated by the Plaintiff.  

166. That at the time Plaintiff purchased each of these locations he was provided with the UFOC by Defendants. 

167.  That said UFOC made certain claims as to the expenses required to operate a franchise location.  

168. That in deciding to purchase the locations, Plaintiff discussed the franchise with Clinton Cooper, an employee of the franchisor, who provided him with a UFOC in April of 2006.  

169. That prior to executing the franchise agreements, Plaintiff was led to believe by the franchisor that if he had fifteen thousand dollars ($15,000.00) in cash, that said amount would be sufficient for everything before the location became profitable.

170. That said representation within the UFOC were false and Defendants knew them to be false.  

171. Defendants intended for Plaintiff to rely on said misrepresentations and in so relying, Plaintiff did so, reasonably and justifiably.

172. That as a result of the misrepresentations and Plaintiff’s reliance thereon, he entered into a franchise agreement with the franchisor.  That as a direct and proximate result of the misrepresentations of the Defendants, Plaintiff sustained damage.

WHEREFORE, for the foregoing reasons, Plaintiff prays judgment against Defendants, and each of them, in a sum that is fair and reasonable in excess of $25,000.00, its costs herein expended, and for such other relief the Court deems just and proper.

COUNT 8: LINDLEY CONTOURS, LLC

BREACH OF CONTRACT

COMES NOW, Lindley Contours, LLC and for its cause of action against Defendants, states as follows:

173. Plaintiff realleges and incorporates by reference as a fully set forth herein of each and every allegation contained in Paragraphs 1 through 114 of the Petition for Damages.

174.  That Plaintiff, Lindley Contours, LLC, and Defendant, Contours Express, LLC, entered into a written franchise agreements concerning the operation of each of its locations.  

175. That pursuant to that franchise agreement, franchisor agreed to provide post-opening support.  

176. That the franchisor never made any periodic visits to any of the Plaintiff’s locations.

177. That franchisor did not consult or advise Plaintiff on the steps necessary for Plaintiff to open the franchise locations.

178. The franchisor provided no additional employees and no initial training course, once the locations were approved but before the locations opened.

179. That Defendants failed to provide any guidance, assistance, or other resources to assist Plaintiff in the operation of his locations.

180. That Defendants breached their contract with Plaintiff in additional respects including, the implied covenant of good faith and fair dealing.  

181. That as a direct and proximate result of the breach of Defendants as aforesaid, Plaintiff sustained damage.

WHEREFORE, for the foregoing reasons, Plaintiff prays judgment against Defendants, and each of them, in a sum that is fair and reasonable in excess of $25,000.00, its costs herein expended, and for such other relief that the Court deems just and proper.

COUNT 9: DEBORAH ANDJUSIC
FRAUD IN THE INDUCEMENT


COMES NOW, Deborah Andjusic (formerly Lapp) and for her cause of action against Defendants, states as follows:

182. Plaintiff realleges and incorporates herein by reference each and every allegation contained in Paragraphs 1 through 114 of the Petition for Damages.

183. That Deborah Andjusic bought and operated a Contours Express franchise located at 20964 Mack Ave, Grosse Pointe Woods, MI 48236.  

184. That at the time Plaintiff purchased this location she was provided with the UFOC by Defendants in mid to late 2002.

185. That said UFOC made certain claims as to the expenses required to operate a franchise location.

186.  That said representation within the UFOC were false and Defendants knew them to be false.  

187. Defendants intended for Plaintiff to rely on said misrepresentations and in so relying, Plaintiff did so, reasonably and justifiably.

188. That as a result of the misrepresentations and Plaintiff’s reliance thereon, she entered into a franchise agreement with the franchisor.  That as a direct and proximate result of the misrepresentations of the Defendants, Plaintiff sustained damage.

WHEREFORE, for the foregoing reasons, Plaintiff prays judgment against Defendants, and each of them, in a sum that is fair and reasonable in excess of $25,000.00, her costs herein expended, and for such other relief the Court deems just and proper.

COUNT 10: DEBORAH ANDJUSIC

BREACH OF CONTRACT

COMES NOW, Deborah Andjusic (formerly Lapp) and for her cause of action against Defendants, states as follows:

189. Plaintiff realleges and incorporates by reference as a fully set forth herein of each and every allegation contained in Paragraphs 1 through 114 of the Petition for Damages. 

190.  That Plaintiff, Deborah Andjusic, and Defendant, Contours Express, LLC, entered into a written franchise agreement concerning the operation of her location. 

191.  That pursuant to that franchise agreement, franchisor agreed to provide post-opening support.  

192. That the franchisor failed to provide any assistance as far as periodic visits or any other means to assist the Plaintiff in the operation of her franchise location.  

193. That Defendants failed to provide any guidance, assistance, or other resources to assist Plaintiff in the operation of her location.

194. That Defendants breached their contract with Plaintiff in additional respects including, the implied covenant of good faith and fair dealing.  

195. That as a direct and proximate result of the breach of Defendants as aforesaid, Plaintiff sustained damage.

WHEREFORE, for the foregoing reasons, Plaintiff prays judgment against Defendants, and each of them, in a sum that is fair and reasonable in excess of $25,000.00, her costs herein expended, and for such other relief that the Court deems just and proper.

COUNT 11: SKOBEL CONYERS, LLC
FRAUD IN THE INDUCEMENT


COME NOW, Skobel Conyers, LLC and for its cause of action against Defendants, states as follows:

196. Plaintiff realleges and incorporates herein by reference each and every allegation contained in Paragraphs 1 through 111 of the Petition for Damages.

197. That Skobel Conyers, LLC bought and operated a Contours Express franchise located at 4878 Thompson Rd, Gahanna, OH 43230.  That at the time Plaintiff purchased this location they were provided with the UFOC by Defendants.  That said UFOC made certain claims as to the expenses required to operate a franchise location.  That said representation within the UFOC were false and Defendants knew them to be false.  

198. Defendants intended for Plaintiff to rely on said misrepresentations and in so relying, Plaintiff did so, reasonably and justifiably.

199. That as a result of the misrepresentations and Plaintiff’s reliance thereon, they entered into a franchise agreement with the franchisor.  That as a direct and proximate result of the misrepresentations of the Defendants, Plaintiff sustained damage.

WHEREFORE, for the foregoing reasons, Plaintiff prays judgment against Defendants, and each of them, in a sum that is fair and reasonable in excess of $25,000.00, its costs herein expended, and for such other relief the Court deems just and proper.

COUNT 12: SKOBEL CONYERS, LLC

BREACH OF CONTRACT

COME NOW, Skobel Conyers, LLC and for its cause of action against Defendants, states as follows:

200. Plaintiff realleges and incorporates by reference as a fully set forth herein of each and every allegation contained in Paragraphs 1 through 111 of the Petition for Damages.  That Plaintiff, Skobel Conyers, LLC, and Defendant, Contours Express, LLC, entered into a written franchise agreement concerning the operation of its location.  That pursuant to that franchise agreement, franchisor agreed to provide post-opening support.  That Defendants failed to provide any guidance, assistance, or other resources to assist Plaintiff in the operation of its location.

201. That Defendants breached their contract with Plaintiff in additional respects including, the implied covenant of good faith and fair dealing.

202. That as a direct and proximate result of the breach of Defendants as aforesaid, Plaintiff sustained damage.


WHEREFORE, for the foregoing reasons, Plaintiff prays judgment against Defendants, and each of them, in a sum that is fair and reasonable in excess of $25,000.00, its costs herein expended, and for such other relief that the Court deems just and proper.

COUNT 13: SUSAN WHITE
FRAUD IN THE INDUCEMENT


COMES NOW, Susan White (formerly Johnson) and for her cause of action against Defendants, states as follows:

203. Plaintiff realleges and incorporates herein by reference each and every allegation contained in Paragraphs 1 through 114 of the Petition for Damages.

204. That Susan White bought and operated a Contours Express franchise located at 1450 West Guadalupe Road, Suite 122, Gilbert, AZ 85233.  

205. That at the time Plaintiff purchased this location she was provided with the UFOC by Clay Neff, an employee of the Defendants.  

206. That Plaintiff received the UFOC on or about January 2005.

207. That according to the UFOC the start-up costs would range between $38,000.00 and $63,000.00. 

208. According to the UFOC, the operational costs did not disclose amounts but gave advice as to what those operational costs would entail.

209.  That said UFOC made certain claims as to the expenses required to operate a franchise location.  

210. That said representation within the UFOC were false and Defendants knew them to be false.  

211. Defendants intended for Plaintiff to rely on said misrepresentations and in so relying, Plaintiff did so, reasonably and justifiably.

212. That as a result of the misrepresentations and Plaintiff’s reliance thereon, she entered into a franchise agreement with the franchisor.  That as a direct and proximate result of the misrepresentations of the Defendants, Plaintiff sustained damage

WHEREFORE, for the foregoing reasons, Plaintiff prays judgment against Defendants, and each of them, in a sum that is fair and reasonable in excess of $25,000.00, her costs herein expended, and for such other relief the Court deems just and proper.

COUNT 14: SUSAN WHITE

BREACH OF CONTRACT

COMES NOW, Susan White (formerly Johnson) and for her cause of action against Defendants, states as follows:

213. Plaintiff realleges and incorporates by reference as a fully set forth herein of each and every allegation contained in Paragraphs 1 through 114 of the Petition for Damages.

214. That Plaintiff, Susan White, and Defendant, Contours Express, LLC, entered into a written franchise agreement concerning the operation of her location.  

215. That pursuant to that franchise agreement, franchisor agreed to provide post-opening support.  

216. That franchisor did not use reasonable efforts to help Plaintiff analyze and evaluate a proposed site for her location.

217. That franchisor did not consult or advise the Plaintiff on site selection, did not procure necessary licenses or permits, did not assistance in ordering the initial inventory, and did not manage construction and refurbishing of the franchise unit layout. 

218. That franchisor did not advise her on the steps necessary to open a franchise location according to a mutually agreed upon date.

219. That franchisor did not assist Plaintiff from time to time regarding the operational problems of her location and there were no reports submitted by the franchisor.  

220. That franchisor never made any periodic visits to Plaintiff’s location for consultation, assistance, or guidance. 

221. That Defendants failed to provide any guidance, assistance, or other resources to assist Plaintiff in the operation of her location.

222. That Defendants breached their contract with Plaintiff in additional respects including, the implied covenant of good faith and fair dealing.  

223. That as a direct and proximate result of the breach of Defendants as aforesaid, Plaintiff sustained damage.

WHEREFORE, for the foregoing reasons, Plaintiff prays judgment against Defendants, and each of them, in a sum that is fair and reasonable in excess of $25,000.00, her costs herein expended, and for such other relief that the Court deems just and proper.

COUNT 15: KATHY FROEHLICH
FRAUD IN THE INDUCEMENT


COMES NOW, Kathy Froehlich and for her cause of action against Defendants, states as follows:

224. Plaintiff realleges and incorporates herein by reference each and every allegation contained in Paragraphs 1 through 114 of the Petition for Damages.

225. That Kathy Froehlich bought and operated a Contours Express franchise located at 4117 Davis Drive, Morrisville, NC 27560. 

226. That at the time Plaintiff was deciding to purchase a franchise she spoke with Mike Widener, an employee of the franchisor.

227. That Mike Widener told Plaintiff that she would make at least sixty thousand dollars ($60,000.00) her first year and that afterwards it would be upwards of eighty (80) to ninety thousand ($90,000.00) per year.

228. He further stated that she would easily have sixty (60) members by the first month and to expect an average of ten (10) to twenty (20) more each month after that.

229. That Mike Widener sent Plaintiff a UFOC on May 8, 2006. 

230. That said UFOC made certain claims as to the expenses required to operate a franchise location.

231.  That said representation made by Mike Widener and representations contained within the UFOC were false and Defendants knew them to be false.  

232. Defendants intended for Plaintiff to rely on said misrepresentations and in so relying, Plaintiff did so, reasonably and justifiably.

233. That as a result of the misrepresentations and Plaintiff’s reliance thereon, she entered into a franchise agreement with the franchisor.  That as a direct and proximate result of the misrepresentations of the Defendants, Plaintiff sustained damage.

WHEREFORE, for the foregoing reasons, Plaintiff prays judgment against Defendants, and each of them, in a sum that is fair and reasonable in excess of $25,000.00, her costs herein expended, and for such other relief the Court deems just and proper.

COUNT 16: KATHY FROEHLICH

BREACH OF CONTRACT

COMES NOW, Kathy Froehlich and for her cause of action against Defendants, states as follows:

234. Plaintiff realleges and incorporates by reference as a fully set forth herein of each and every allegation contained in Paragraphs 1 through 114 of the Petition for Damages.

235. That Plaintiff, Kathy Froehlich, and Defendant, Contours Express, LLC, entered into a written franchise agreement concerning the operation of her location.  

236. That pursuant to that franchise agreement, franchisor agreed to provide post-opening support.  

237. That franchisor provided a corporate trainer for the grand opening, who provided no service to the franchisee and, in fact, made it difficult for the franchisee to sign up members.

238. That Plaintiff made numerous requests to the franchisor that another individual be sent for a re-grand opening due to the ineffectiveness of the corporate trainer provided by the franchisor.  

239. That no representative of the Defendant ever visited the franchise location of Plaintiff after the initial training session.

240. That despite numerous requests for additional assistance, Plaintiff received no such assistance from the franchisor.

241. That Defendants failed to provide any guidance, assistance, or other resources to assist Plaintiff in the operation of her location.

242. That Defendants breached their contract with Plaintiff in additional respects including, the implied covenant of good faith and fair dealing.  

243. That as a direct and proximate result of the breach of Defendants as aforesaid, Plaintiff sustained damage.

WHEREFORE, for the foregoing reasons, Plaintiff prays judgment against Defendants, and each of them, in a sum that is fair and reasonable in excess of $25,000.00, her costs herein expended, and for such other relief that the Court deems just and proper.

COUNT 17: KATHLEEN AND CARLOS DELGADO
FRAUD IN THE INDUCEMENT


COME NOW, Kathleen and Carlos Delgado and for their cause of action against Defendants, states as follows:

244. Plaintiffs reallege and incorporate herein by reference each and every allegation contained in Paragraphs 1 through 114 of the Petition for Damages.

245. That Kathleen and Carlos Delgado bought and operated a Contours Express franchise located at 5115 North Dysart Rd, Suite 206, Litchfield, AZ 85340.  

246. That prior to Plaintiffs deciding to purchase this franchise, they had discussions with Clay Neff, an employee of the franchise.

247. That the Plaintiffs received a UFOC from Mr. Neff in early 2004.

248. That said UFOC made certain claims as to the expenses required to operate a franchise location. 

249. That said representation made by Defendants through its employee and contained within the UFOC were false and Defendants knew them to be false.  

250. Defendants intended for Plaintiffs to rely on said misrepresentations and in so relying, Plaintiffs did so, reasonably and justifiably.

251. That as a result of the misrepresentations and Plaintiffs’ reliance thereon, they entered into a franchise agreement with the franchisor.  That as a direct and proximate result of the misrepresentations of the Defendants, Plaintiffs sustained damage.

WHEREFORE, for the foregoing reasons, Plaintiffs pray judgment against Defendants, and each of them, in a sum that is fair and reasonable in excess of $25,000.00, their costs herein expended, and for such other relief the Court deems just and proper.

COUNT 18: KATHLEEN AND CARLOS DELGADO

BREACH OF CONTRACT
COME NOW, Kathleen and Carlos Delgado and for their cause of action against Defendants, states as follows:

252. Plaintiffs reallege and incorporate by reference as a fully set forth herein of each and every allegation contained in Paragraphs 1 through 114 of the Petition for Damages.

253. That Plaintiffs, Kathleen and Carlos Delgado, and Defendant, Contours Express, LLC, entered into a written franchise agreement concerning the operation of their location.  

254. That pursuant to that franchise agreement, franchisor agreed to provide certain pre-opening and post-opening support.  

255. That franchisor failed to use reasonable efforts to help Plaintiffs analyze and evaluate a proposed site for their location.

256. That franchisor failed to consult and advise Plaintiffs on the site selection, failed to procure any necessary licenses or permits, failed to assist Plaintiffs in ordering their initial inventory, and failed to manage construction and refurbishing of the franchise unit layout.

257. That franchisor failed to make any periodic visits to Plaintiffs’ location for consulation, assistance, or guidance.

258. That Defendants, in fact, failed to provide any guidance, assistance, or other resources to assist Plaintiffs in the operation of their location.

259. That Defendants breached their contract with Plaintiffs in additional respects including, the implied covenant of good faith and fair dealing.

260. That as a direct and proximate result of the breach of Defendants as aforesaid, Plaintiffs sustained damage.

WHEREFORE, for the foregoing reasons, Plaintiffs pray judgment against Defendants, and each of them, in a sum that is fair and reasonable in excess of $25,000.00, their costs herein expended, and for such other relief that the Court deems just and proper.

COUNT 19: K & N ENTERPRISES, INC
FRAUD IN THE INDUCEMENT


COMES NOW, K & N Enterprises, Inc and for its cause of action against Defendants, states as follows:

261. Plaintiff realleges and incorporates herein by reference each and every allegation contained in Paragraphs 1 through 114 of the Petition for Damages

262. That K & N Enterprises, Inc bought and operated a Contours Express franchise located at 1585 Butte House Rd, Suite B, Yuba City, CA 95993.

263. That in deciding to purchase a pre-existing location, Plaintiff has discussions with Keith Dziki, an employee of the franchisor.

264. That during those conversations, it was represented to Plaintiff, it could generate a profit with as little as 150 to 200 members.

265. That Defendant never provided a UFOC to the Plaintiff.

266. That said representation made by the Defendants’ employee were false and Defendants knew them to be false.  

267. Defendants intended for Plaintiff to rely on said misrepresentations and in so relying, Plaintiff did so, reasonably and justifiably.

268. That as a result of the misrepresentations and Plaintiff’s reliance thereon, it entered into a franchise agreement with the franchisor.  That as a direct and proximate result of the misrepresentations of the Defendants, Plaintiff sustained damage.

WHEREFORE, for the foregoing reasons, Plaintiff prays judgment against Defendants, and each of them, in a sum that is fair and reasonable in excess of $25,000.00, its costs herein expended, and for such other relief the Court deems just and proper.

COUNT 20: K & N ENTERPRISES, INC

BREACH OF CONTRACT


COMES NOW, K & N Enterprises, Inc and for its cause of action against Defendants, states as follows:

269. Plaintiff realleges and incorporates by reference as a fully set forth herein of each and every allegation contained in Paragraphs 1 through 114 of the Petition for Damages.

270. That Plaintiff, K & N Enterprises, Inc, and Defendant, Contours Express, LLC, entered into a written franchise agreement concerning the operation of its location.  

271. That pursuant to that franchise agreement, franchisor agreed to provide certain support to the franchisee.

272. That other than periodic monthly check up calls from Cindy, an employee of the franchisor, no one from the franchisor had ever visited Plaintiff’s location.

273. On several occasions, Plaintiff had a question that needed to be answered by the franchisor and would call the franchisor, but said calls were rarely, if ever, returned.
274. At that time, a conference call was scheduled with Angela, an employee of the franchisor, but Plaintiff never heard from her.

275. That Plaintiff attempted to follow up with email and telephone calls but never had any of those communications returned.

276. That Defendants failed to provide any guidance, assistance, or other resources to assist Plaintiff in the operation of its location.

277. That Defendants breached their contract with Plaintiff in additional respects including, the implied covenant of good faith and fair dealing.  

278. That as a direct and proximate result of the breach of Defendants as aforesaid, Plaintiff sustained damage.

WHEREFORE, for the foregoing reasons, Plaintiff prays judgment against Defendants, and each of them, in a sum that is fair and reasonable in excess of $25,000.00, its costs herein expended, and for such other relief that the Court deems just and proper.

COUNT 21: LINDA MCDONALD AND DIANE COTTER
FRAUD IN THE INDUCEMENT


COME NOW, Linda McDonald and Diane Cotter and for their cause of action against Defendants, states as follows:

279. Plaintiffs re-allege and incorporate herein by reference each and every allegation contained in Paragraphs 1 through 114 of the Petition for Damages.

280. That Linda McDonald and Diane Cotter bought and operated a Contours Express franchise located at 33089 23 Mile Rd, New Baltimore, MI 48047.  

281. That at the time Plaintiffs were considering whether to purchase a franchise, they were in communication with Darren Carter, an employee of franchisor.

282. That Plaintiffs received a copy of the UFOC in October or November of 2002.

283. That said UFOC made certain claims as to the expenses required to operate a franchise location and that said claims were also made by Darren Carter.  

284. That said representation within the UFOC were false and Defendants knew them to be false.  

285. Defendants intended for Plaintiffs to rely on said misrepresentations and in so relying, Plaintiffs did so, reasonably and justifiably.

286. That as a result of the misrepresentations and Plaintiffs’ reliance thereon, they entered into a franchise agreement with the franchisor.  That as a direct and proximate result of the misrepresentations of the Defendants, Plaintiffs sustained damage.

WHEREFORE, for the foregoing reasons, Plaintiffs pray judgment against Defendants, and each of them, in a sum that is fair and reasonable in excess of $25,000.00, their costs herein expended, and for such other relief the Court deems just and proper.

COUNT 22: LINDA MCDONALD AND DIANE COTTER

BREACH OF CONTRACT

COME NOW, Linda McDonald and Diane Cotter and for their cause of action against Defendants, states as follows:

287. Plaintiffs re-allege and incorporate by reference as a fully set forth herein of each and every allegation contained in Paragraphs 1 through 114 of the Petition for Damages.

288. That Plaintiffs, Linda McDonald and Diane Cotter, and Defendant, Contours Express, LLC, entered into a written franchise agreement concerning the operation of their location.  

289. That pursuant to that franchise agreement, franchisor agreed to provide pre-opening and post-opening support.  

290. That franchisor did not use reasonable efforts to help Plaintiffs analyze and evaluate a proposed site for their location.

291. That franchisor did not consult and advise Plaintiffs on their site selection, procure any necessary licenses or permits, assist in ordering any initial inventory other than equipment, and did not manage construction and refurbishing of the franchise unit layout.

292. That franchisor did not consult or advise Plaintiffs on the steps necessary to open a franchise location according to a mutually agreed upon date and, in fact, Plaintiffs do not believe the franchisor was aware of the date upon which they opened.

293. That fanchisor failed to provide Plaintiffs with any operation manual.

294. That franchisor did not provide any additional employees or any additional training prior to Plaintiffs opening their location.

295. That franchisor failed to provide the Plaintiffs with one of its representatives for supervisory or assistance with the grand opening of their location.

296. That franchisor did not assist the Plaintiffs at any time regarding the operation problems of the location, as described by any reports which may have been submitted by the Plaintiffs or inspections made by the Defendants.  

297. That franchisor failed to make any periodic visits to Plaintiffs’ location for consultation, assistance, or guidance. 

298. That Defendants, in fact, failed to provide any guidance, assistance, or other resources to assist Plaintiffs in the operation of their location.

299. That Defendants breached their contract with Plaintiffs in additional respects including, the implied covenant of good faith and fair dealing.

300. That as a direct and proximate result of the breach of Defendants as aforesaid, Plaintiffs sustained damage.

WHEREFORE, for the foregoing reasons, Plaintiffs pray judgment against Defendants, and each of them, in a sum that is fair and reasonable in excess of $25,000.00, their costs herein expended, and for such other relief that the Court deems just and proper.

COUNT 23: LORI HERNKE
FRAUD IN THE INDUCEMENT


COMES NOW, Lori Hernke and for her cause of action against Defendants, states as follows:

301. Plaintiff realleges and incorporates herein by reference each and every allegation contained in Paragraphs 1 through 114 of the Petition for Damages.

302. That Lori Hernke bought and operated a Contours Express franchise located at 940 Hansen Road, Green Bay, WI 54304.

303. That prior to purchasing her franchise, Plaintiff had discussion with Jim Hogg, who, upon information and belief, was an independent representative employed by the Defendants to sell franchises.

304. That Mr. Hogg provided a UFOC to Plaintiff in late 2003.

305. That said UFOC, provided by Mr. Hogg, estimated that the total range of start up costs would be between $31,190.00 to $145,040.00. 

306. That the numbers contained in the UFOC were supported by Mr. Hogg.

307. That said representation within the UFOC and supported by Mr. Hogg were false and Defendants knew them to be false.  

308. Defendants intended for Plaintiff to rely on said misrepresentations and in so relying, Plaintiff did so, reasonably and justifiably.

309. That as a result of the misrepresentations and Plaintiff’s reliance thereon, she entered into a franchise agreement with the franchisor.  That as a direct and proximate result of the misrepresentations of the Defendants, Plaintiff sustained damage.

WHEREFORE, for the foregoing reasons, Plaintiff prays judgment against Defendants, and each of them, in a sum that is fair and reasonable in excess of $25,000.00, her costs herein expended, and for such other relief the Court deems just and proper.

COUNT 24: LORI HERNKE

BREACH OF CONTRACT


COMES NOW, Lori Hernke and for her cause of action against Defendants, states as follows:

310. Plaintiff realleges and incorporates by reference as a fully set forth herein of each and every allegation contained in Paragraphs 1 through 114 of the Petition for Damages.

311. That Plaintiff, Lori Hernke, and Defendant, Contours Express, LLC, entered into a written franchise agreement concerning the operation of her location.  

312. That pursuant to that franchise agreement, franchisor agreed to provide pre-opening and post-opening support.  

313. That franchisor did not use reasonable efforts to help Plaintiffs analyze and evaluate a proposed site for their location.

314. That franchisor did not consult and advise Plaintiffs on their site selection, failed to procure any necessary licenses or permits, failed to assist in ordering any initial inventory other than equipment, and failed to manage construction and refurbishing of the franchise location.

315. That franchisor never called the Plaintiff during construction to see how it was going.

316. That franchisor did not provide any additional employees or any additional training prior to the grand opening of Plaintiff’s location.

317. That franchisor did not assist the Plaintiffs at any time regarding the operation problems of her location.

318. That franchisor would call Plaintiff a couple times a year to see how things were going, but would never follow up on any problems relayed to him by Plaintiff.

319. That franchisor failed to make any periodic visits to Plaintiff’s location for consultation, assistance, or guidance.

320. That franchisor barely returned any emails or phone calls made by the Plaintiff. 

321. That Defendants, in fact, failed to provide any guidance, assistance, or other resources to assist Plaintiff in the operation of her location.

322. That Defendants breached their contract with Plaintiff in additional respects including, the implied covenant of good faith and fair dealing.  

323. That as a direct and proximate result of the breach of Defendants as aforesaid, Plaintiff sustained damage.

WHEREFORE, for the foregoing reasons, Plaintiff prays judgment against Defendants, and each of them, in a sum that is fair and reasonable in excess of $25,000.00, her costs herein expended, and for such other relief that the Court deems just and proper.

COUNT 25: TAMMY FRAZIER
FRAUD IN THE INDUCEMENT


COMES NOW, Tammy Frazier and for her cause of action against Defendants, states as follows:

324. Plaintiff realleges and incorporates herein by reference each and every allegation contained in Paragraphs 1 through 114 of the Petition for Damages.

325. That Tammy Frazier bought and operated a Contours Express franchise located at 116 South Keenland, Suite 1, Richmond, KY 40475.  

326. That the location purchased by the Plaintiff was already in existence at the time of purchase.

327. That in deciding to purchase the location, Plaintiff had discussion with Mike Widener, an employee of the franchisor.

328. That prior to signing her franchise agreement, Plaintiff did not receive a copy of the UFOC and only received a copy via email from Mike Widener after she asked him for one.

329. That Mike Widener represented to Plaintiff that the franchisor had over 500 locations in 19 countries with an 85% success rate since the start in 1998.  

330. That Mike Widener emphasized many times how supportive the franshisor was and how successful the franchise was.

331. That at the time Plaintiff purchased her location, she was unaware that Mike Widener, an employee of Defendant, was partners with the owner of the franchise she was purchasing. 

332. That the profitability of the location, as represented by Mike Widener on behalf of Defendants, and the claims as to the expenses required to operate a franchise location contained in the UFOC, were false.

333. That Defendants knew these said representations were false.

334. Defendants intended for Plaintiff to rely on said misrepresentations and in so relying, Plaintiff did so, reasonably and justifiably.

335. That as a result of the misrepresentations and Plaintiff’s reliance thereon, she entered into a franchise agreement with the franchisor.  That as a direct and proximate result of the misrepresentations of the Defendants, Plaintiff sustained damage.

WHEREFORE, for the foregoing reasons, Plaintiff prays judgment against Defendants, and each of them, in a sum that is fair and reasonable in excess of $25,000.00, her costs herein expended, and for such other relief the Court deems just and proper

COUNT 26: TAMMY FRAZIER

BREACH OF CONTRACT

COMES NOW, Tammy Frazier and for her cause of action against Defendants, states as follows:

336. Plaintiff realleges and incorporates by reference as a fully set forth herein of each and every allegation contained in Paragraphs 1 through 114 of the Petition for Damages.

337. That Plaintiff, Tammy Frazier, and Defendant, Contours Express, LLC, entered into a written franchise agreement concerning the operation of her location.  

338. That pursuant to that franchise agreement, franchisor agreed to provide certain support to Plaintiff.

339. That franchisor did not and has not assisted the Plaintiff at anytime regarding any operation problems of her location. 

340. That franchisor has never made any periodic visits to Plaintiff’s location for consultation, assistance, or guidance.

341. That Plaintiff has called to franchisor on several occasions and has never received a call back.

342. That Defendants, in fact, failed to provide any guidance, assistance, or other resources to assist Plaintiff in the operation of her location.

343. That Defendants breached their contract with Plaintiff in additional respects including, the implied covenant of good faith and fair dealing.  

344. That as a direct and proximate result of the breach of Defendants as aforesaid, Plaintiff sustained damage.

WHEREFORE, for the foregoing reasons, Plaintiff prays judgment against Defendants, and each of them, in a sum that is fair and reasonable in excess of $25,000.00, her costs herein expended, and for such other relief that the Court deems just and proper.

COUNT 27: GOT WEIGHTS, LLC
FRAUD IN THE INDUCEMENT


COME NOW, Got Weights, LLC and for its cause of action against Defendants, states as follows:

345. Plaintiff re-alleges and incorporates herein by reference each and every allegation contained in Paragraphs 1 through 114 of the Petition for Damages.

346. That Got Weights, LLC bought and operated a Contours Express franchise located at 1525 A Street NE, Suite 107, Auburn, WA 98002.  

347. That prior to purchasing the franchise, Plaintiff discussed the franchise with Clay Neff, a representative and employee of the Defendant.

348. That Mr. Neff told Plaintiff that it takes up to $60,000.00 to start-up the club but that the club should make profit by 6 months.

349. Operation costs were never discussed since it was led to believe it should have several hundred members within 6 months.

350. That Plaintiff did inquire as to why so many clubs had closed as listed in the UFOC.

351. That Mr. Neff told the Plaintiff that most of the closed clubs had just transferred ownership.

352. That Plaintiff received the UFOC on or about June 10, 2005 from Clay Neff by certified mail.

353. That said UFOC made certain claims as to the expenses required to operate a franchise location.  

354. That said representation within the UFOC were supported by Clay Neff.

355. That said representations made by Mr. Neff and contained in the UFOC were false and Defendants knew them to be false.  

356. Defendants intended for Plaintiff to rely on said misrepresentations and in so relying, Plaintiff did so, reasonably and justifiably.

357. That as a result of the misrepresentations and Plaintiff’s reliance thereon, it entered into a franchise agreement with the franchisor.  That as a direct and proximate result of the misrepresentations of the Defendants, Plaintiff sustained damage.

WHEREFORE, for the foregoing reasons, Plaintiff prays judgment against Defendants, and each of them, in a sum that is fair and reasonable in excess of $25,000.00, its costs herein expended, and for such other relief the Court deems just and proper.

COUNT 28: GOT WEIGHTS, LLC

BREACH OF CONTRACT

COME NOW, Got Weights, LLC and for its cause of action against Defendants, states as follows:

358. Plaintiff re-alleges and incorporates by reference as a fully set forth herein of each and every allegation contained in Paragraphs 1 through 114 of the Petition for Damages.

359. That Plaintiff, Got Weights, LLC, and Defendant, Contours Express, LLC, entered into a written franchise agreement concerning the operation of its location.  

360. That pursuant to that franchise agreement, franchisor agreed to provide pre-opening and post-opening support.  

361. That franchisor did not use reasonable efforts to help Plaintiff analyze and evaluate a proposed site for its location.

362. That franchisor did not consult and advise Plaintiff on its site selection, failed to procure any necessary licenses or permits, failed to assist in ordering any initial inventory other than equipment, and failed to manage construction and refurbishing of the franchise location.

363. That Plaintiff began to experience problems from the very beginning and when Plaintiff would contact Cindy Becker concerning those problems, she would tell Plaintiff that it would get better.

364. That thereafter Jim became Plaintiff’s representative and was supposed to call Plaintiff on a monthly basis but only did so for two months.

365. At one point, Angela Bellini was asking everyone for a quarterly report that contained all of the clubs information concerning the number of members and operating costs, etc.

366. That Plaintiff filled out said information, hoping it might trigger some help, but Plaintiff never heard anything from franchisor.

367. That franchisor failed to make any periodic visits to Plaintiff’s location for consultation, assistance, or guidance.

368. That, in fact, Defendants failed to provide any guidance, assistance, or other resources to assist Plaintiff in the operation of its location.

369. That Defendants breached their contract with Plaintiff in additional respects including, the implied covenant of good faith and fair dealing.

370. That as a direct and proximate result of the breach of Defendants as aforesaid, Plaintiff sustained damage.

WHEREFORE, for the foregoing reasons, Plaintiff prays judgment against Defendants, and each of them, in a sum that is fair and reasonable in excess of $25,000.00, its costs herein expended, and for such other relief that the Court deems just and proper.

COUNT 29: SUSAN GIMIGLIANO
FRAUD IN THE INDUCEMENT

COMES NOW, Susan Gimigliano and for her cause of action against Defendants, states as follows:

371. Plaintiff realleges and incorporates herein by reference each and every allegation contained in Paragraphs 1 through 114 of the Petition for Damages.

372. That Susan Gimigliano bought and operated a Contours Express franchise located at 5040 William Penn Highway, Monroeville, PA 15146.  

373. That prior to deciding to purchase a franchise, Plaintiff had discussions with Clay Neff, an employee of the Defendant.

374. That Mr. Neff indicated to Plaintiff that she should be able to break even within six months of her opening.

375. That Plaintiff was provided with a UFOC early in 2004 by Mr. Neff.

376. That said UFOC made certain claims as to the expenses required to operate a franchise location and said claims were supported by Mr. Neff.

377. That said representation within the UFOC and supported by Mr. Neff were false and Defendants knew them to be false.  

378. Defendants intended for Plaintiff to rely on said misrepresentations and in so relying, Plaintiff did so, reasonably and justifiably.

379. That as a result of the misrepresentations and Plaintiff’s reliance thereon, she entered into a franchise agreement with the franchisor.  That as a direct and proximate result of the misrepresentations of the Defendants, Plaintiff sustained damage.

WHEREFORE, for the foregoing reasons, Plaintiff prays judgment against Defendants, and each of them, in a sum that is fair and reasonable in excess of $25,000.00, her costs herein expended, and for such other relief the Court deems just and proper.

COUNT 30: SUSAN GIMIGLIANO

BREACH OF CONTRACT

COMES NOW, Susan Gimigliano and for her cause of action against Defendants, states as follows:

380. Plaintiff realleges and incorporates by reference as a fully set forth herein of each and every allegation contained in Paragraphs 1 through 114 of the Petition for Damages.

381. That Plaintiff, Susan Gimigliano, and Defendant, Contours Express, LLC, entered into a written franchise agreement concerning the operation of her location.  

382. That pursuant to that franchise agreement, franchisor agreed to provide pre-opening and post-opening support.  

383. That once Plaintiff had her grand opening, Defendants failed to provide any support in any manner.

384. That franchisor failed to make any periodic visits to Plaintiff’s location for consultation, assistance, or guidance.

385. That Plaintiff would attempt to contact the franchisor concerning the issues by telephone but that said calls were never returned.

386. That, in fact, Defendants failed to provide any guidance, assistance, or other resources to assist Plaintiff in the operation of her location.

387. That Defendants breached their contract with Plaintiff in additional respects including, the implied covenant of good faith and fair dealing.  

388. That as a direct and proximate result of the breach of Defendants as aforesaid, Plaintiff sustained damage.

WHEREFORE, for the foregoing reasons, Plaintiff prays judgment against Defendants, and each of them, in a sum that is fair and reasonable in excess of $25,000.00, her costs herein expended, and for such other relief that the Court deems just and proper.

COUNT 31: SIMPLY HERS FITNESS CONSULTING, INC
FRAUD IN THE INDUCEMENT


COMES NOW, Simply Hers Fitness Consulting, Inc and for its cause of action against Defendants, states as follows:

389. Plaintiff realleges and incorporates herein by reference each and every allegation contained in Paragraphs 1 through 114 of the Petition for Damages.

390. That Simply Hers Fitness Consulting, Inc bought and operated a Contours Express franchise located at 10955 Jones Bridge Rd, Suite 119, Alpharetta, GA 30022.

391. That at the time Plaintiff purchased this location it was provided with the UFOC in late 2005 by Keith Bziki, an employee of the Defendant.  

392. That in determining whether to purchase said existing location, Plaintiff had discussions with Keith Bziki and Mike Widener.

393. That said UFOC made certain claims as to the expenses required to operate a franchise location and said claims were supported by Keith Bziki and Mike Widener, employees of Defendants.

394. That said representation within the UFOC and supported by employees of Defendants were false and Defendants knew them to be false.  

395. Defendants intended for Plaintiff to rely on said misrepresentations and in so relying, Plaintiff did so, reasonably and justifiably.

396. That as a result of the misrepresentations and Plaintiff’s reliance thereon, it entered into a franchise agreement with the franchisor.  That as a direct and proximate result of the misrepresentations of the Defendants, Plaintiff sustained damage.

WHEREFORE, for the foregoing reasons, Plaintiff prays judgment against Defendants, and each of them, in a sum that is fair and reasonable in excess of $25,000.00, its costs herein expended, and for such other relief the Court deems just and proper.

COUNT 32: SIMPLY HERS FITNESS CONSULTING, INC

BREACH OF CONTRACT

COMES NOW, Simply Hers Fitness Consulting, Inc and for its cause of action against Defendants, states as follows:

397. Plaintiff realleges and incorporates by reference as a fully set forth herein of each and every allegation contained in Paragraphs 1 through 114 of the Petition for Damages.

398. That Plaintiff, Simply Hers Fitness Consulting, Inc, and Defendant, Contours Express, LLC, entered into a written franchise agreement concerning the operation of its location.  

399. That pursuant to that franchise agreement, franchisor agreed to provide post-opening support.  

400. That franchisor failed to make any periodic visits to Plaintiff’s location for consultation, assistance, or guidance.

401. That Plaintiff was repeatedly told by Mary Schrad and Angela Bellini, employees of the Defendants, that they did not understand why the marketing Plaintiff was doing was not bringing in the numbers.

402. That Plaintiff was told by Bill Helton during a phone conversation in December of 2006 that clubs located in an area where the median income was over $100,000.00 were not successful, however Defendants made no suggestions or provided no assistance to Plaintiff to operate her location.

403. That, in fact, Defendants failed to provide any guidance, assistance, or other resources to assist Plaintiff in the operation of its location.

404. That Defendants breached their contract with Plaintiff in additional respects including, the implied covenant of good faith and fair dealing.  

405. That as a direct and proximate result of the breach of Defendants as aforesaid, Plaintiff sustained damage.

WHEREFORE, for the foregoing reasons, Plaintiff prays judgment against Defendants, and each of them, in a sum that is fair and reasonable in excess of $25,000.00, its costs herein expended, and for such other relief that the Court deems just and proper.

COUNT 33: ALISON GILMORE AND RACHEL JOHNSTON
FRAUD IN THE INDUCEMENT


COME NOW, Alison Gilmore and Rachel Johnston and for their cause of action against Defendants, states as follows:

406. Plaintiffs re-allege and incorporate herein by reference each and every allegation contained in Paragraphs 1 through 114 of the Petition for Damages.

407. That Alison Gilmore and Rachel Johnston bought and operated a Contours Express franchise located at 606 Route 71, 2nd Floor, Brielle, NJ 08730.  

408. That at the time Plaintiffs purchased this location they were provided with the UFOC by an employee of the Defendants in mid to late 2003.  

409. That said UFOC made certain claims as to the expenses required to open and operate a franchise location.  

410. That said representation within the UFOC as supported by the employees of the Defendants were false and Defendants knew them to be false.  

411. Defendants intended for Plaintiffs to rely on said misrepresentations and in so relying, Plaintiffs did so, reasonably and justifiably.

412. That as a result of the misrepresentations and Plaintiffs’ reliance thereon, they entered into a franchise agreement with the franchisor.  That as a direct and proximate result of the misrepresentations of the Defendants, Plaintiffs sustained damage.

WHEREFORE, for the foregoing reasons, Plaintiffs pray judgment against Defendants, and each of them, in a sum that is fair and reasonable in excess of $25,000.00, their costs herein expended, and for such other relief the Court deems just and proper.

COUNT 34: ALISON GILMORE AND RACHEL JOHNSTON

BREACH OF CONTRACT


COME NOW, Alison Gilmore and Rachel Johnston and for their cause of action against Defendants, states as follows:

413. Plaintiffs re-allege and incorporate by reference as a fully set forth herein of each and every allegation contained in Paragraphs 1 through 114 of the Petition for Damages. 

414. That Plaintiffs, Alison Gilmore and Rachel Johnston, and Defendant, Contours Express, LLC, entered into a written franchise agreement concerning the operation of their location.  

415. That pursuant to that franchise agreement, franchisor agreed to provide post-opening support.  

416. That franchisor failed to make any periodic visits to Plaintiffs’ location for consultation, assistance, or guidance.

417. That Plaintiffs requested assistance from the franchisor but never received any meaningful assistance in advertising or any other matters to improve their operation.

418. That Defendants, in fact, failed to provide any guidance, assistance, or other resources to assist Plaintiffs in the operation of their location.

419. That Defendants breached their contract with Plaintiffs in additional respects including, the implied covenant of good faith and fair dealing.

420. That as a direct and proximate result of the breach of Defendants as aforesaid, Plaintiffs sustained damage.

WHEREFORE, for the foregoing reasons, Plaintiffs pray judgment against Defendants, and each of them, in a sum that is fair and reasonable in excess of $25,000.00, their costs herein expended, and for such other relief that the Court deems just and proper.

COUNT 35: SEMPIER WETZEL, LLC
FRAUD IN THE INDUCEMENT


COME NOW, Sempier Wetzel, LLC and for its cause of action against Defendants, states as follows:

421. Plaintiffs re-allege and incorporate herein by reference each and every allegation contained in Paragraphs 1 through 114 of the Petition for Damages.

422. That Sempier Wetzel, LLC bought and operated a Contours Express franchise located at 303 Walter Foran Blvd, Flemington, NJ 08822.  

423. That prior to purchasing the location Plaintiff was provided with a UFOC in the middle of 2004.

424. That said UFOC made certain claims as to the expenses required to open and operate a franchise location.  

425. That said representation within the UFOC and supported by employees of the Defendants and including Bill Helton were false and Defendants knew them to be false.

426. Defendants intended for Plaintiff to rely on said misrepresentations and in so relying, Plaintiff did so, reasonably and justifiably.

427. That as a result of the misrepresentations and Plaintiff’s reliance thereon, it entered into a franchise agreement with the franchisor.  That as a direct and proximate result of the misrepresentations of the Defendants, Plaintiff sustained damage.

WHEREFORE, for the foregoing reasons, Plaintiff prays judgment against Defendants, and each of them, in a sum that is fair and reasonable in excess of $25,000.00, its costs herein expended, and for such other relief the Court deems just and proper.

COUNT 36: SEMPIER WETZEL, LLC

BREACH OF CONTRACT


COME NOW, Sempier Wetzel, LLC and for its cause of action against Defendants, states as follows:

428. Plaintiff re-alleges and incorporates by reference as a fully set forth herein of each and every allegation contained in Paragraphs 1 through 114 of the Petition for Damages.

429. That Plaintiff, Sempier Wetzel, LLC, and Defendant, Contours Express, LLC, entered into a written franchise agreement concerning the operation of its location.  

430. That pursuant to that franchise agreement, franchisor agreed to provide post-opening support.  

431. That franchisor failed to make any periodic visits to Plaintiff’s location for consultation, assistance, or guidance.

432. That Plaintiff requested further assistance from the franchisor, the franchisor refused to provide any such assistance.

433. That Defendants, in fact, failed to provide any guidance, assistance, or other resources to assist Plaintiff in the operation of its location.

434. That Defendants breached their contract with Plaintiff in additional respects including, the implied covenant of good faith and fair dealing.

435. That as a direct and proximate result of the breach of Defendants as aforesaid, Plaintiff sustained damage.

WHEREFORE, for the foregoing reasons, Plaintiff prays judgment against Defendants, and each of them, in a sum that is fair and reasonable in excess of $25,000.00, its costs herein expended, and for such other relief that the Court deems just and proper.

COUNT 37: CATHY MCGINNIS
FRAUD IN THE INDUCEMENT


COMES NOW, Cathy McGinnis and for her cause of action against Defendants, states as follows:

436. Plaintiff realleges and incorporates herein by reference each and every allegation contained in Paragraphs 1 through 114 of the Petition for Damages.

437. That Cathy McGinnis bought and operated a Contours Express franchise located at 118 South Highway 16, Triangle Crossroads, Denver, NC 28037.  

438. That prior to Plaintiff purchasing her franchise, she had discussions with Mike Widener, an employee of the Defendant.

439. That Mr. Widener told Plaintiff in February of 2005 that if she followed their plan, she would succeed.

440. That Mr. Widener further told Plaintiff that most Contours Express franchises were at a breaking even point in about four (4) months.

441. That in February of 2005, Mike Widener provided Plaintiff with a UFOC.

442. That said UFOC made certain claims as to the expenses required to open and operate a franchise location and said claims were fully supported by Mr. Widener.  

443. That said representation within the UFOC, as supported by Mike Widener, were false and Defendants knew them to be false.  

444. Defendants intended for Plaintiff to rely on said misrepresentations and in so relying, Plaintiff did so, reasonably and justifiably.

445. That as a result of the misrepresentations and Plaintiff’s reliance thereon, she entered into a franchise agreement with the franchisor.  That as a direct and proximate result of the misrepresentations of the Defendants, Plaintiff sustained damage.

WHEREFORE, for the foregoing reasons, Plaintiff prays judgment against Defendants, and each of them, in a sum that is fair and reasonable in excess of $25,000.00, her costs herein expended, and for such other relief the Court deems just and proper.

COUNT 38: CATHY MCGINNIS

BREACH OF CONTRACT

COMES NOW, Cathy McGinnis and for her cause of action against Defendants, states as follows:

446. Plaintiff realleges and incorporates by reference as a fully set forth herein of each and every allegation contained in Paragraphs 1 through 114 of the Petition for Damages.

447. That Plaintiff, Cathy McGinnis, and Defendant, Contours Express, LLC, entered into a written franchise agreement concerning the operation of her location.  

448. That pursuant to that franchise agreement, franchisor agreed to provide pre-opening and post-opening support.  

449. That franchisor did not use reasonable efforts to help Plaintiff analyze and evaluate a proposed site for her location.

450. That franchisor did not consult and advise Plaintiff on her site selection, failed to procure any necessary licenses or permits, failed to assist in ordering any initial inventory other than equipment, and failed to manage construction and refurbishing of the franchise location.

451. That franchisor did not consult or advise Plaintiff on the steps necessary to open a franchise location.

452. That, in fact, Plaintiff was constantly on the phone with franchisor trying to get information on how to open because she had no idea what to do.

453. That franchisor failed to provide any assistance to Plaintiff once she was open.

454. That franchisor failed to make any periodic visits to Plaintiff’s location for consultation, assistance, or guidance.

455. That, in fact, Defendants failed to provide any guidance, assistance, or other resources to assist Plaintiff in the operation of her location.

456. That Defendants breached their contract with Plaintiff in additional respects including, the implied covenant of good faith and fair dealing.  

457. That as a direct and proximate result of the breach of Defendants as aforesaid, Plaintiff sustained damage.

WHEREFORE, for the foregoing reasons, Plaintiff prays judgment against Defendants, and each of them, in a sum that is fair and reasonable in excess of $25,000.00, her costs herein expended, and for such other relief that the Court deems just and proper.

COUNT 39: MICHELLE PRYCE-LASKOS
FRAUD IN THE INDUCEMENT


COMES NOW, Michelle Pryce-Laskos and for her cause of action against Defendants, states as follows:

458. Plaintiff realleges and incorporates herein by reference each and every allegation contained in Paragraphs 1 through 114 of the Petition for Damages.

459. That Michelle Pryce-Laskos bought and operated a Contours Express franchise located at 6515 Commerce Rd, West Bloomfield, MI 48324.  

460. That prior to purchasing her location, Plaintiff had discussions with Darren Carter, an employee of the Defendant.

461. That prior to purchasing her location, Plaintiff was provided with a UFOC by Mr. Carter in early 2002.

462. That said UFOC made certain claims as to the expenses required to open and operate a franchise location and said claims were fully supported by Mr. Carter.

463. That said representation within the UFOC as supported by Defendants’ employee were false and Defendants knew them to be false.  

464. Defendants intended for Plaintiff to rely on said misrepresentations and in so relying, Plaintiff did so, reasonably and justifiably.

465. That as a result of the misrepresentations and Plaintiff’s reliance thereon, she entered into a franchise agreement with the franchisor.  That as a direct and proximate result of the misrepresentations of the Defendants, Plaintiff sustained damage.

WHEREFORE, for the foregoing reasons, Plaintiff prays judgment against Defendants, and each of them, in a sum that is fair and reasonable in excess of $25,000.00, her costs herein expended, and for such other relief the Court deems just and proper.

COUNT 40: MICHELLE PRYCE-LASKOS

BREACH OF CONTRACT

COMES NOW, Michelle Pryce-Laskos and for her cause of action against Defendants, states as follows:

466. Plaintiff realleges and incorporates by reference as a fully set forth herein of each and every allegation contained in Paragraphs 1 through 114 of the Petition for Damages.

467. That Plaintiff, Michelle Pryce-Alford, and Defendant, Contours Express, LLC, entered into a written franchise agreement concerning the operation of her location.  

468. That pursuant to that franchise agreement, franchisor agreed to provide pre-opening and post-opening support.  

469. That Defendants failed to provide any guidance, assistance, or other resources to assist Plaintiff in the operation of her location.

470. That Defendants breached their contract with Plaintiff in additional respects including, the implied covenant of good faith and fair dealing.  

471. That as a direct and proximate result of the breach of Defendants as aforesaid, Plaintiff sustained damage.

WHEREFORE, for the foregoing reasons, Plaintiff prays judgment against Defendants, and each of them, in a sum that is fair and reasonable in excess of $25,000.00, her costs herein expended, and for such other relief that the Court deems just and proper.

COUNT 41: VICTORIA KOWALEWSKY
FRAUD IN THE INDUCEMENT


COMES NOW, Victoria Kowalewsky and for her cause of action against Defendants, states as follows:

472. Plaintiff realleges and incorporates herein by reference each and every allegation contained in Paragraphs 1 through 114 of the Petition for Damages.

473. That Victoria Kowalewsky bought and operated a Contours Express franchise located at 3033 Bristol Street, Suite F, Costa Mesa, CA 92626.  

474. That prior to the time Plaintiff purchased her location, she discussed purchasing a franchise with Jim Hogg, believed to be an independent sales representative employed by Defendants. 

475. On September 18, 2003, Plaintiff received a UFOC from Mr. Hogg via fax.

476. That the UFOC stated that start up costs would be $31,190.00 to $45,040.00 and that advertising would cost $300.00 to $600.00.

477. That the actual cost for Plaintiff to start up her location were drastically higher and the marketing costs were also drastically higher.

478. That the claims as to the expenses required to open and operate a franchise location, as set forth by the UFOC and supported by Defendants’ representative, were false and Defendants knew them to be false.  

479. Defendants intended for Plaintiff to rely on said misrepresentations and in so relying, Plaintiff did so, reasonably and justifiably.

480. That as a result of the misrepresentations and Plaintiff’s reliance thereon, she entered into a franchise agreement with the franchisor.  That as a direct and proximate result of the misrepresentations of the Defendants, Plaintiff sustained damage.

WHEREFORE, for the foregoing reasons, Plaintiff prays judgment against Defendants, and each of them, in a sum that is fair and reasonable in excess of $25,000.00, her costs herein expended, and for such other relief the Court deems just and proper.

COUNT 42: VICTORIA KOWALEWSKY

BREACH OF CONTRACT

COMES NOW, Victoria Kowalewsky and for her cause of action against Defendants, states as follows:

481. Plaintiff realleges and incorporates by reference as a fully set forth herein of each and every allegation contained in Paragraphs 1 through 114 of the Petition for Damages.

482. That Plaintiff, Victoria Kowalewsky, and Defendant, Contours Express, LLC, entered into a written franchise agreement concerning the operation of her location.  

483. That pursuant to that franchise agreement, franchisor agreed to provide pre-opening and post-opening support.  

484. That franchisor did not use reasonable efforts to help Plaintiff analyze and evaluate a proposed site for her location.

485. That franchisor failed to make any periodic visits to Plaintiff’s location for consultation, assistance, or guidance.

486. That within six months of opening, Plaintiff made numerous requests for additional training.

487. That these requests, especially for assistance in marketing, were never fulfilled.

488. That after the 2005 national convention, the franchisor arranged for the California clubs to have a one day seminar headed by a club owner in Florida.

489. That said club owner focused primarily on seniors and did not provide any special assistance on marketing tactics for their market environment, the metropolitan areas of California.

490. In January of 2006, franchisor sent a representative for a half-day training session, in which said representative spent 2 hours providing the Plaintiff with her background.

491. That Defendants failed to provide minimal guidance, assistance, or other resources to assist Plaintiff in the operation of her location.

492. That Defendants breached their contract with Plaintiff in additional respects including, the implied covenant of good faith and fair dealing.  

493. That as a direct and proximate result of the breach of Defendants as aforesaid, Plaintiff sustained damage.

WHEREFORE, for the foregoing reasons, Plaintiff prays judgment against Defendants, and each of them, in a sum that is fair and reasonable in excess of $25,000.00, her costs herein expended, and for such other relief that the Court deems just and proper.

COUNT 43: JO-ANN HUDSON
FRAUD IN THE INDUCEMENT


COMES NOW, Jo-Ann Hudson and for her cause of action against Defendants, states as follows:

494. Plaintiff realleges and incorporates herein by reference each and every allegation contained in Paragraphs 1 through 114 of the Petition for Damages.

495. That Jo-Ann Hudson bought and operated a Contours Express franchise located at 6901 La Palma Ave, Buena Park, CA 90620.  

496. That prior to deciding to purchase her franchise, Plaintiff had discussions with Clay Neff, an employee of the Defendant.

497. That in April of 2004, Clay Neff stated to Plaintiff that her location could be profitable with fewer than 200 members and that she should break even at 150 to 200 members.

498. That Plaintiff was further told be Clay Neff that it would take about $40,000 to open her location.

499. That on April 9, 2004, Plaintiff received the UFOC from Clay Neff.

500. That said UFOC made certain claims as to the expenses required to open and operate a franchise location.  

501. That said representation within the UFOC and representations made by Clay Neff were false and Defendants knew them to be false.  

502. Defendants intended for Plaintiff to rely on said misrepresentations and in so relying, Plaintiff did so, reasonably and justifiably.

503. That as a result of the misrepresentations and Plaintiff’s reliance thereon, she entered into a franchise agreement with the franchisor.  That as a direct and proximate result of the misrepresentations of the Defendants, Plaintiff sustained damage. 

WHEREFORE, for the foregoing reasons, Plaintiff prays judgment against Defendants, and each of them, in a sum that is fair and reasonable in excess of $25,000.00, her costs herein expended, and for such other relief the Court deems just and proper.

COUNT 44: JO-ANN HUDSON

BREACH OF CONTRACT

COMES NOW, Jo-Ann Hudson and for her cause of action against Defendants, states as follows:

504. Plaintiff realleges and incorporates by reference as a fully set forth herein of each and every allegation contained in Paragraphs 1 through 114 of the Petition for Damages.

505. That Plaintiff, Jo-Ann Hudson, and Defendant, Contours Express, LLC, entered into a written franchise agreement concerning the operation of her location.  

506. That pursuant to that franchise agreement, franchisor agreed to provide pre-opening and post-opening support.  

507. That franchisor failed to make any periodic visits to Plaintiff’s location for consultation, assistance, or guidance.

508. That, in fact, Defendants failed to provide any guidance, assistance, or other resources to assist Plaintiff in the operation of her location after it opened.

509. That Defendants breached their contract with Plaintiff in additional respects including, the implied covenant of good faith and fair dealing.  

510. That as a direct and proximate result of the breach of Defendants as aforesaid, Plaintiff sustained damage.

WHEREFORE, for the foregoing reasons, Plaintiff prays judgment against Defendants, and each of them, in a sum that is fair and reasonable in excess of $25,000.00, her costs herein expended, and for such other relief that the Court deems just and proper.

COUNT 45: FITNESS PLUS, LLC
FRAUD IN THE INDUCEMENT


COMES NOW, Fitness Plus, LLC and for its cause of action against Defendants, states as follows:

511. Plaintiff realleges and incorporates herein by reference each and every allegation contained in Paragraphs 1 through 114 of the Petition for Damages.

512. That Fitness Plus, LLC bought and operated a Contours Express franchise located at 5496 Baumgartner Rd, Suite 125, St. Louis, MO 63129.  

513. That prior to purchasing the franchise, Plaintiff was provided with a UFOC from the Defendants in November of 2002.

514. That said UFOC made certain claims as to the expenses required to open and operate a franchise location.  

515. That said representation within the UFOC were false and Defendants knew them to be false.  

516. Defendants intended for Plaintiff to rely on said misrepresentations and in so relying, Plaintiff did so, reasonably and justifiably.

517. That as a result of the misrepresentations and Plaintiff’s reliance thereon, it entered into a franchise agreement with the franchisor.  That as a direct and proximate result of the misrepresentations of the Defendants, Plaintiff sustained damage.

WHEREFORE, for the foregoing reasons, Plaintiff prays judgment against Defendants, and each of them, in a sum that is fair and reasonable in excess of $25,000.00, its costs herein expended, and for such other relief the Court deems just and proper.

COUNT 46: FITNESS PLUS, LLC

BREACH OF CONTRACT

COMES NOW, Fitness Plus, LLC and for its cause of action against Defendants, states as follows:

518. Plaintiff realleges and incorporates by reference as a fully set forth herein of each and every allegation contained in Paragraphs 1 through 114 of the Petition for Damages.

519. That Plaintiff, Fitness Plus, LLC, and Defendant, Contours Express, LLC, entered into a written franchise agreement concerning the operation of its location.  

520. That pursuant to that franchise agreement, franchisor agreed to provide pre-opening and post-opening support.  

521. That franchisor failed to make any periodic visits to Plaintiff’s location for consultation, assistance, or guidance.

522. That franchisor failed to respond to any complaints and requests for assistance by the Plaintiff concerning the operation of its location.

523. That, in fact, Defendants failed to provide any guidance, assistance, or other resources to assist Plaintiff in the operation of its location.

524. That Defendants breached their contract with Plaintiff in additional respects including, the implied covenant of good faith and fair dealing.  

525. That as a direct and proximate result of the breach of Defendants as aforesaid, Plaintiff sustained damage.

WHEREFORE, for the foregoing reasons, Plaintiff prays judgment against Defendants, and each of them, in a sum that is fair and reasonable in excess of $25,000.00, its costs herein expended, and for such other relief that the Court deems just and proper.

COUNT 47: SUSAN WRIGHT AND LISA SALINES
FRAUD IN THE INDUCEMENT


COME NOW, Susan Wright and Lisa Salines and for their cause of action against Defendants, states as follows:

526. Plaintiffs re-allege and incorporate herein by reference each and every allegation contained in Paragraphs 1 through 114 of the Petition for Damages.

527. That Susan Wright and Lisa Salines bought and operated a Contours Express franchise located at 383 Lowell St, Wakefield, MA 01880.  

528. That prior to purchasing said location, Plaintiffs had discussions with Darren Carter, a representative of the franchisor.

529. That according to Mr. Carter the start up costs for the New England area would be $50,000 and Plaintiffs should see profit within 3 months of opening.

530. That said discussions occurred in February of 2004.

531. That in February of 2004, Darren Carter provided Plaintiffs with a UFOC which made certain claims as to the expenses required to open and operate a franchise location.  

532. That said representation within the UFOC and made by Mr. Carter were false and Defendants knew them to be false.  

533. Defendants intended for Plaintiffs to rely on said misrepresentations and in so relying, Plaintiffs did so, reasonably and justifiably.

534. That as a result of the misrepresentations and Plaintiffs’ reliance thereon, they entered into a franchise agreement with the franchisor.  That as a direct and proximate result of the misrepresentations of the Defendants, Plaintiffs sustained damage.

WHEREFORE, for the foregoing reasons, Plaintiffs pray judgment against Defendants, and each of them, in a sum that is fair and reasonable in excess of $25,000.00, their costs herein expended, and for such other relief the Court deems just and proper.

COUNT 48: SUSAN WRIGHT AND LISA SALINES

BREACH OF CONTRACT

COME NOW, Susan Wright and Lisa Salines and for their cause of action against Defendants, states as follows:

535. Plaintiffs re-allege and incorporate by reference as a fully set forth herein of each and every allegation contained in Paragraphs 1 through 114 of the Petition for Damages.

536. That Plaintiffs, Susan Wright and Lisa Salines, and Defendant, Contours Express, LLC, entered into a written franchise agreement concerning the operation of their location.  

537. That pursuant to that franchise agreement, franchisor agreed to provide pre-opening and post-opening support. 
538. That franchisor failed to use reasonable efforts to help Plaintiffs analyze and evaluate a proposed site for the franchise location. 

539. That franchisor did not consult and advise Plaintiffs on their site selection, failed to procure any necessary licenses or permits, failed to assist in ordering any initial inventory other than equipment, and failed to manage construction and refurbishing of the franchise location.

540. That franchisor failed to assist Plaintiffs from time to time regarding operational problems of their location despite numerous calls by Plaintiffs to the franchisor.

541. That franchisor failed to make any periodic visits to Plaintiffs’ location for consultation, assistance, or guidance.

542. That, in fact, Defendants failed to provide any guidance, assistance, or other resources to assist Plaintiffs in the operation of their location.

543. That Defendants breached their contract with Plaintiffs in additional respects including, the implied covenant of good faith and fair dealing.

544. That as a direct and proximate result of the breach of Defendants as aforesaid, Plaintiffs sustained damage.

WHEREFORE, for the foregoing reasons, Plaintiffs pray judgment against Defendants, and each of them, in a sum that is fair and reasonable in excess of $25,000.00, their costs herein expended, and for such other relief that the Court deems just and proper.

COUNT 49: KIM LAPOLLA
FRAUD IN THE INDUCEMENT


COMES NOW, Kim Lapolla and for her cause of action against Defendants, states as follows:

545. Plaintiff realleges and incorporates herein by reference each and every allegation contained in Paragraphs 1 through 114 of the Petition for Damages.

546. That Kim Lapolla bought and operated a Contours Express franchise located at 31396 Harper Ave, St. Clair Shores, MI 48082.  

547. Kim Lapolla also bought and operated another Contours Express location at 16989 18 Mile Rd, Clinton Township, MI 48038.  

548. That prior to purchasing either location, Plaintiff had discussions with Darren Carter, an employee of the Defendant.

549. That prior to entering into any franchise agreement, Plaintiff was told by representatives of Defendants that she would break even with approximately 200 members which should occur in 3 months and she should be profitable with 300 members.

550. That Plaintiff received a UFOC from the Defendants through it representative, Darren Carter, in early 2002.

551. That said UFOC made certain claims as to the expenses required to open and operate a franchise location and that said claims were supported by Darren Carter and other representatives of the Defendants.

552. That said representation within the UFOC, as supported by representatives of Defendants, were false and Defendants knew them to be false.  

553. Defendants intended for Plaintiff to rely on said misrepresentations and in so relying, Plaintiff did so, reasonably and justifiably.

554. That as a result of the misrepresentations and Plaintiff’s reliance thereon, she entered into a franchise agreement with the franchisor.  That as a direct and proximate result of the misrepresentations of the Defendants, Plaintiff sustained damage.

WHEREFORE, for the foregoing reasons, Plaintiff prays judgment against Defendants, and each of them, in a sum that is fair and reasonable in excess of $25,000.00, her costs herein expended, and for such other relief the Court deems just and proper.

COUNT 50: KIM LAPOLLA

BREACH OF CONTRACT

COMES NOW, Kim Lapolla and for her cause of action against Defendants, states as follows:

555. Plaintiff realleges and incorporates by reference as a fully set forth herein of each and every allegation contained in Paragraphs 1 through 114 of the Petition for Damages.

556. That Plaintiff, Kim Lapolla, and Defendant, Contours Express, LLC, entered into a written franchise agreement concerning the operation of her locations.  

557. That pursuant to that franchise agreement, franchisor agreed to provide pre-opening and post-opening support.  

558. That franchisor did not use reasonable efforts to help Plaintiff analyze and evaluate a proposed site for her locations.

559. That franchisor failed to make any periodic visits to either of Plaintiff’s location for consultation, assistance, or guidance. 

560. That franchisor failed to inquiry about any problems Plaintiff was experiencing and failed to provide any further guidance, assistance, or other resources to assist Plaintiff in the operation of her locations.

561. That Defendants breached their contract with Plaintiff in additional respects including, the implied covenant of good faith and fair dealing.  

562. That as a direct and proximate result of the breach of Defendants as aforesaid, Plaintiff sustained damage.

WHEREFORE, for the foregoing reasons, Plaintiff prays judgment against Defendants, and each of them, in a sum that is fair and reasonable in excess of $25,000.00, her costs herein expended, and for such other relief that the Court deems just and proper.

COUNT 51: JOY CHRISTINE CABALLERO
FRAUD IN THE INDUCEMENT


COMES NOW, Joy Christine Caballero and for her cause of action against Defendants, states as follows:

563. Plaintiff realleges and incorporates herein by reference each and every allegation contained in Paragraphs 1 through 114 of the Petition for Damages.

564. That Joy Christine Caballero bought and operated a Contours Express franchise located at 8951 N Cedar Ave, Fresno, CA 93720.  

565. That prior to purchasing her franchise, Plaintiff had discussions with Clay Neff, an employee of the Defendants.

566. That Mr. Neff told Plaintiff that start up costs were anywhere from $31,000 to $56,000 and that Plaintiff should start to make a profit in about 4 months.

567. That Clay Neff forwarded a UFOC to the Plaintiff in February of 2006.

568. That said UFOC made certain claims as to the expenses required to open and operate a franchise location and said claims were supported by Clay Neff.  

569. That said representation within the UFOC, as supported by Defendants’ employee, were false and Defendants knew them to be false.  

570. Defendants intended for Plaintiff to rely on said misrepresentations and in so relying, Plaintiff did so, reasonably and justifiably.

571. That as a result of the misrepresentations and Plaintiff’s reliance thereon, she entered into a franchise agreement with the franchisor.  That as a direct and proximate result of the misrepresentations of the Defendants, Plaintiff sustained damage.

WHEREFORE, for the foregoing reasons, Plaintiff prays judgment against Defendants, and each of them, in a sum that is fair and reasonable in excess of $25,000.00, her costs herein expended, and for such other relief the Court deems just and proper.

COUNT 52: JOY CHRISTINE CABALLERO

BREACH OF CONTRACT

COMES NOW, Joy Christine Caballero and for her cause of action against Defendants, states as follows:

572. Plaintiff realleges and incorporates by reference as a fully set forth herein of each and every allegation contained in Paragraphs 1 through 114 of the Petition for Damages.

573. That Plaintiff, Joy Christine Caballero, and Defendant, Contours Express, LLC, entered into a written franchise agreement concerning the operation of her location.  

574. That pursuant to that franchise agreement, franchisor agreed to provide pre-opening and post-opening support.  

575. That franchisor failed to provide the Plaintiff with one of its representatives for supervisory or assistance for three days for the grand opening of her location, but that said person was rude to potential customers and to Plaintiff and other club owners as well.

576. That after two weeks of being open, Plaintiff spoke to Kim, an employee of the franchisor, because she was concerned that she was not doing well.

577. That said person asked what she was doing about advertising and said she was doing everything she should be and hung up.

578. That franchisor failed to make any periodic visits to Plaintiff’s location for consultation, assistance, or guidance.

579. That, in fact, Defendants failed to provide any guidance, assistance, or other resources to assist Plaintiff in the operation of her location.

580. That Defendants breached their contract with Plaintiff in additional respects including, the implied covenant of good faith and fair dealing.  

581. That as a direct and proximate result of the breach of Defendants as aforesaid, Plaintiff sustained damage.

WHEREFORE, for the foregoing reasons, Plaintiff prays judgment against Defendants, and each of them, in a sum that is fair and reasonable in excess of $25,000.00, her costs herein expended, and for such other relief that the Court deems just and proper.

COUNT 53: PHYLLIS DUARTE
FRAUD IN THE INDUCEMENT


COMES NOW, Phyllis Duarte and for her cause of action against Defendants, states as follows:

582. Plaintiff realleges and incorporates herein by reference each and every allegation contained in Paragraphs 1 through 114 of the Petition for Damages.

583. That Phyllis Duarte bought and operated a Contours Express franchise located at 7555 Pacific Ave #251, Stockton, CA 95207.  

584. That prior to purchasing her franchise, Plaintiff had discussions with Clay Neff, an employee of the Defendants.

585. That Plaintiff was told that she could be up and running for $40,000 and that she could be profitable with less than 200 members.

586. That Plaintiff was also told that it takes about four months to break even.

587. That Plaintiff received a UFOC from Defendants in April or May of 2007.

588. That said UFOC made certain claims as to the expenses required to operate a franchise location and certain claims were supported by Clay Neff.  

589. That said representation within the UFOC, as supported by Defendants’ employee, were false and Defendants knew them to be false.  

590. Defendants intended for Plaintiff to rely on said misrepresentations and in so relying, Plaintiff did so, reasonably and justifiably.

591. That as a result of the misrepresentations and Plaintiff’s reliance thereon, she entered into a franchise agreement with the franchisor.  That as a direct and proximate result of the misrepresentations of the Defendants, Plaintiff sustained damage.

WHEREFORE, for the foregoing reasons, Plaintiff prays judgment against Defendants, and each of them, in a sum that is fair and reasonable in excess of $25,000.00, her costs herein expended, and for such other relief the Court deems just and proper.

COUNT 54: PHYLLIS DUARTE

BREACH OF CONTRACT

COMES NOW, Phyllis Duarte and for her cause of action against Defendants, states as follows:

592. Plaintiff realleges and incorporates by reference as a fully set forth herein of each and every allegation contained in Paragraphs 1 through 114 of the Petition for Damages.

593. That Plaintiff, Phyllis Duarte, and Defendant, Contours Express, LLC, entered into a written franchise agreement concerning the operation of her location.  

594. That pursuant to that franchise agreement, franchisor agreed to provide pre-opening and post-opening support.  

595. That franchisor did not use reasonable efforts to help Plaintiff analyze and evaluate a proposed site for her location.

596. That franchisor did not consult and advise Plaintiff on her site selection, failed to procure any necessary licenses or permits, failed to assist in ordering any initial inventory other than equipment, and failed to manage construction and refurbishing of the franchise location.

597. That franchisor failed to assist the Plaintiff at anytime regarding operational problems of her location despite numerous emails from Plaintiff to the franchisor and numerous phone calls.

598. That franchisor failed to make any periodic visits to Plaintiff’s location for consultation, assistance, or guidance.

599. That, in fact, Defendants failed to provide any guidance, assistance, or other resources to assist Plaintiff in the operation of her location.

600. That Defendants breached their contract with Plaintiff in additional respects including, the implied covenant of good faith and fair dealing.  

601. That as a direct and proximate result of the breach of Defendants as aforesaid, Plaintiff sustained damage.

WHEREFORE, for the foregoing reasons, Plaintiff prays judgment against Defendants, and each of them, in a sum that is fair and reasonable in excess of $25,000.00, her costs herein expended, and for such other relief that the Court deems just and proper.

COUNT 55: ELITE FITNESS GROUP, LLC
FRAUD IN THE INDUCEMENT


COME NOW, Elite Fitness Group, LLC and for its cause of action against Defendants, states as follows:

602. Plaintiff re-alleges and incorporates herein by reference each and every allegation contained in Paragraphs 1 through 114 of the Petition for Damages.

603. That Elite Fitness Group, LLC bought and operated a Contours Express franchise located at 800K Denow Road, Pennington, NJ 08534.  

604. That prior to purchasing its franchise, Plaintiff had discussions with Keith Bziki, an employee of Defendants.

605. That, on July 12, 2005, Mr. Bziki forwarded a UFOC to the Plaintiff that contained certain claims as to the costs of opening and operating a franchise location.

606. That said representation within the UFOC, as supported by Mr. Bziki, were false and Defendants knew them to be false.  

607. Defendants intended for Plaintiff to rely on said misrepresentations and in so relying, Plaintiff did so, reasonably and justifiably.

608. That as a result of the misrepresentations and Plaintiff’s reliance thereon, it entered into a franchise agreement with the franchisor.  That as a direct and proximate result of the misrepresentations of the Defendants, Plaintiff sustained damage.

WHEREFORE, for the foregoing reasons, Plaintiff prays judgment against Defendants, and each of them, in a sum that is fair and reasonable in excess of $25,000.00, its costs herein expended, and for such other relief the Court deems just and proper.

COUNT 56: ELITE FITNESS GROUP, LLC

BREACH OF CONTRACT

COME NOW, Elite Fitness Group, LLC and for its cause of action against Defendants, states as follows:

609. Plaintiff re-alleges and incorporates by reference as a fully set forth herein of each and every allegation contained in Paragraphs 1 through 114 of the Petition for Damages. 

610. That Plaintiff, Elite Fitness Group, LLC, and Defendant, Contours Express, LLC, entered into a written franchise agreement concerning the operation of its location.  

611. That pursuant to that franchise agreement, franchisor agreed to provide pre-opening and post-opening support. 

612. That franchisor did not use reasonable efforts to help Plaintiff analyze and evaluate a proposed site for its location.

613. That franchisor did not consult or advise Plaintiff on the steps necessary to open a franchise location according to a mutually agreed upon date.

614. That franchisor did not assist the Plaintiff at any time regarding the operation problems of the location as evidence by its first quarterly report which showed a large loss.

615. That franchisor failed to make any periodic visits to Plaintiff’s location for consultation, assistance, or guidance.

616. That, in fact, Defendants failed to provide any guidance, assistance, or other resources to assist Plaintiff in the operation of its location.

617. That Defendants breached their contract with Plaintiff in additional respects including, the implied covenant of good faith and fair dealing.

618. That as a direct and proximate result of the breach of Defendants as aforesaid, Plaintiff sustained damage.

WHEREFORE, for the foregoing reasons, Plaintiff prays judgment against Defendants, and each of them, in a sum that is fair and reasonable in excess of $25,000.00, its costs herein expended, and for such other relief that the Court deems just and proper.

COUNT 57: JAN & JILL, LLC
FRAUD IN THE INDUCEMENT


COME NOW, Jan & Jill, LLC and for its cause of action against Defendants, states as follows:

619. Plaintiff re-alleges and incorporates herein by reference each and every allegation contained in Paragraphs 1 through 114 of the Petition for Damages.

620. That Jan & Jill, LLC bought and operated a Contours Express franchise located at 8251 Chippewa Rd, Brecksville, OH 44141.  

621. Jan & Jill, LLC also bought and operated another Contours Express franchise located at 8900 Darrow Road, Suite H-105, Twinsburg, OH 44087.  

622. That prior to purchasing the franchises, Plaintiff had discussions with Carolyn, last name unknown, who at that time was an employee of the Defendants. 

623. That Plaintiff was told by one of the original owners of the Defendant that it should take no more than $50,000.00 to open and operate a location and should break even within six months.

624. That in late 2002, Plaintiff was provided with a UFOC by the Defendants.  

625. That said UFOC made certain claims as to the expenses required to operate a franchise location and said claims were fully supported by Defendants’ representatives.  

626. That said representation within the UFOC, as supported by Defendants’ representatives, were false and Defendants knew them to be false.  

627. Defendants intended for Plaintiff to rely on said misrepresentations and in so relying, Plaintiff did so, reasonably and justifiably.

628. That as a result of the misrepresentations and Plaintiff’s reliance thereon, it entered into a franchise agreement with the franchisor.  That as a direct and proximate result of the misrepresentations of the Defendants, Plaintiff sustained damage.

WHEREFORE, for the foregoing reasons, Plaintiff prays judgment against Defendants, and each of them, in a sum that is fair and reasonable in excess of $25,000.00, its costs herein expended, and for such other relief the Court deems just and proper.

COUNT 58: JAN & JILL, LLC

BREACH OF CONTRACT

COME NOW, Jan & Jill, LLC and for its cause of action against Defendants, states as follows:

629. Plaintiff re-alleges and incorporates by reference as a fully set forth herein of each and every allegation contained in Paragraphs 1 through 114 of the Petition for Damages.

630. That Plaintiff, Jan & Jill, LLC, and Defendant, Contours Express, LLC, entered into a written franchise agreement concerning the operation of its locations.  

631. That pursuant to that franchise agreement, franchisor agreed to provide pre-opening and post-opening support.  

632. That franchisor did not use reasonable efforts to help Plaintiff analyze and evaluate a proposed site for its locations.

633. That franchisor did not consult and advise Plaintiff on its site selections, failed to procure any necessary licenses or permits, failed to assist in ordering any initial inventory other than equipment, and failed to manage construction and refurbishing of the franchise locations.

634. That franchisor did not consult or advise Plaintiff on the steps necessary to open the franchise locations according to a mutually agreed upon date.

635. That franchisor did not assist the Plaintiff at any time regarding the operation problems of its locations.

636. That franchisor failed to make any periodic visits to Plaintiff’s locations for consultation, assistance, or guidance.

637. That, in fact, Defendants failed to provide any guidance, assistance, or other resources to assist Plaintiff in the operation of its locations.

638. That Defendants breached their contract with Plaintiff in additional respects including, the implied covenant of good faith and fair dealing.

639. That as a direct and proximate result of the breach of Defendants as aforesaid, Plaintiff sustained damage.

WHEREFORE, for the foregoing reasons, Plaintiff prays judgment against Defendants, and each of them, in a sum that is fair and reasonable in excess of $25,000.00, its costs herein expended, and for such other relief that the Court deems just and proper.


COUNT 59: DON AND JANICE FLANIGAN
FRAUD IN THE INDUCEMENT


COME NOW, Don and Janis Flanigan and for their cause of action against Defendants, states as follows:

640. Plaintiffs re-allege and incorporate herein by reference each and every allegation contained in Paragraphs 1 through 114 of the Petition for Damages.

641. That Don and Janis Flanigan bought and operated a Contours Express franchise located at 6903 Katella Ave, Cypress, CA 90630.  

642. That prior to deciding to purchase their franchise location, Plaintiffs had discussions with James Hogg, an independent representative of the Defendant.

643. That Mr. Hogg represented to Plaintiffs that it would take $30,000 to start their location.

644. That Mr. Hogg further represented to Plaintiffs that they should break even with 250 members.

645. That said discussions occurred in early 2003.

646. That Mr. Hogg forwarded the UFOC to the Plaintiffs in early 2003 and said UFOC made certain claims as to the expenses required to open and operate a franchise location.  

647. That said representation within the UFOC and representation made by Defendants’ representative were false and Defendants knew them to be false.  

648. Defendants intended for Plaintiffs to rely on said misrepresentations and in so relying, Plaintiffs did so, reasonably and justifiably.

649. That as a result of the misrepresentations and Plaintiffs’ reliance thereon, they entered into a franchise agreement with the franchisor.  That as a direct and proximate result of the misrepresentations of the Defendants, Plaintiffs sustained damage.

WHEREFORE, for the foregoing reasons, Plaintiffs pray judgment against Defendants, and each of them, in a sum that is fair and reasonable in excess of $25,000.00, their costs herein expended, and for such other relief the Court deems just and proper.

COUNT 60: DON AND JANIS FLANIGAN

BREACH OF CONTRACT

COME NOW, Don and Janis Flanigan and for their cause of action against Defendants, states as follows:

650. Plaintiffs re-allege and incorporate by reference as a fully set forth herein of each and every allegation contained in Paragraphs 1 through 114 of the Petition for Damages.

651. That Plaintiffs, Don and Janis Flanigan, and Defendant, Contours Express, LLC, entered into a written franchise agreement concerning the operation of their location.

652. That pursuant to that franchise agreement, franchisor agreed to provide pre-opening and post-opening support.  

653. That franchisor did not use reasonable efforts to help Plaintiffs analyze and evaluate a proposed site for their location.

654. That franchisor did not consult and advise Plaintiffs on their site selection, failed to procure any necessary licenses or permits, failed to assist in ordering any initial inventory other than equipment, and failed to manage construction and refurbishing of the franchise location.

655. That franchisor failed to provide the Plaintiffs with one of its representatives for supervisory or assistance with the grand opening of their location for three days, said person was only provided for two days.

656. That franchisor failed to make any periodic visits to Plaintiffs’ location for consultation, assistance, or guidance.

657. That, in fact, Defendants failed to provide any guidance, assistance, or other resources to assist Plaintiffs in the operation of their location.

658. That Defendants breached their contract with Plaintiffs in additional respects including, the implied covenant of good faith and fair dealing.

659. That as a direct and proximate result of the breach of Defendants as aforesaid, Plaintiffs sustained damage.

WHEREFORE, for the foregoing reasons, Plaintiffs pray judgment against Defendants, and each of them, in a sum that is fair and reasonable in excess of $25,000.00, their costs herein expended, and for such other relief that the Court deems just and proper.

COUNT 61: 4 LADIES, LLC
FRAUD IN THE INDUCEMENT


COMES NOW, 4 Ladies, LLC and for its cause of action against Defendants, states as follows:

660. Plaintiff realleges and incorporates herein by reference each and every allegation contained in Paragraphs 1 through 114 of the Petition for Damages.

661. That 4 Ladies, LLC bought and operated a Contours Express franchise located at 11318 South St, Cerritos, CA 90703.  

662. That prior to deciding to purchase its location, Plaintiff, through its members, was in contact with Ann Cerr, an employee of the franchisor.

663. That Ms. Cerr referred Plaintiff to two open facilities in Southern California for the purpose of seeing potential opportunity of franchises in September of 2003.

664. That thereafter Plaintiff received a letter with the first UFOC agreement, with a statement regarding the total cost to be around $40,000.

665. That said UFOC was received in October of 2003.

666. That said UFOC made certain claims as to the expenses required to open and operate a franchise location.  

667. That said representation within the UFOC were false and Defendants knew them to be false.  

668. Defendants intended for Plaintiff to rely on said misrepresentations and in so relying, Plaintiff did so, reasonably and justifiably.

669. That as a result of the misrepresentations and Plaintiff’s reliance thereon, it entered into a franchise agreement with the franchisor.  That as a direct and proximate result of the misrepresentations of the Defendants, Plaintiff sustained damage.

WHEREFORE, for the foregoing reasons, Plaintiff prays judgment against Defendants, and each of them, in a sum that is fair and reasonable in excess of $25,000.00, its costs herein expended, and for such other relief the Court deems just and proper.

COUNT 62: 4 LADIES, LLC

BREACH OF CONTRACT

COMES NOW, 4 Ladies, LLC and for its cause of action against Defendants, states as follows:

670. Plaintiff realleges and incorporates by reference as a fully set forth herein of each and every allegation contained in Paragraphs 1 through 114 of the Petition for Damages.

671. That Plaintiff, 4 Ladies, LLC, and Defendant, Contours Express, LLC, entered into a written franchise agreement concerning the operation of its location.  

672. That pursuant to that franchise agreement, franchisor agreed to provide pre-opening and post-opening support.  

673. That franchisor failed to provide any support or training to Plaintiff at the time of its grand opening.

674. That for the first eight months of operation, Plaintiff received no contact of support from the franchisor.

675. That Plaintiff contacted the franchisor to inquire about receiving the training it had paid for but had not received at grand opening.

676. That Judy, an employee of the franchisor, told Plaintiff that said training would be arranged.

677. That there has been no follow up on said training.

678. That franchisor never inspected or visited the franchise location to offer any support or guidance in the operation of said location.

679. That, in fact, Defendants failed to provide any guidance, assistance, or other resources to assist Plaintiff in the operation of its location.

680. That Defendants breached their contract with Plaintiff in additional respects including, the implied covenant of good faith and fair dealing.  

681. That as a direct and proximate result of the breach of Defendants as aforesaid, Plaintiff sustained damage.

WHEREFORE, for the foregoing reasons, Plaintiff prays judgment against Defendants, and each of them, in a sum that is fair and reasonable in excess of $25,000.00, its costs herein expended, and for such other relief that the Court deems just and proper.

COUNT 63: DAVID THOMPSON AND KATHY MORGAN-THOMPSON
FRAUD IN THE INDUCEMENT


COME NOW, David Thompson and Kathy Morgan-Thompson and for their cause of action against Defendants, states as follows:

682. Plaintiffs re-allege and incorporate herein by reference each and every allegation contained in Paragraphs 1 through 114 of the Petition for Damages.

683. That David Thompson and Kathy Morgan-Thompson bought and operated a Contours Express franchise located at 117 Washington Ave, North Haven, CT 06473.

684. That prior to purchasing said location, Plaintiffs were provided with information from representatives of the franchisor, including Bill Helton.

685. That prior to purchasing this locationm, Plaintiffs were provided with the UFOC by Defendants in late 2003.  

686. That certain representations were made by the representatives of the Defendants that the start up costs would be around $30,000 to $40,000 and that they should be able to obtain 200 members within six months.

687. That said representation made by the Defendants’ representatives, within the UFOC, and on the internet site were false and Defendants knew them to be false.  

688. Defendants intended for Plaintiffs to rely on said misrepresentations and in so relying, Plaintiffs did so, reasonably and justifiably.

689. That as a result of the misrepresentations and Plaintiffs’ reliance thereon, they entered into a franchise agreement with the franchisor.  That as a direct and proximate result of the misrepresentations of the Defendants, Plaintiffs sustained damage.

WHEREFORE, for the foregoing reasons, Plaintiffs pray judgment against Defendants, and each of them, in a sum that is fair and reasonable in excess of $25,000.00, their costs herein expended, and for such other relief the Court deems just and proper.

COUNT 64: DAVID THOMPSON AND KATHY MORGAN-THOMPSON

BREACH OF CONTRACT


COME NOW, David Thompson and Kathy Morgan-Thompson and for their cause of action against Defendants, states as follows:

690. Plaintiffs re-allege and incorporate by reference as a fully set forth herein of each and every allegation contained in Paragraphs 1 through 114 of the Petition for Damages. 

691. That Plaintiffs, David Thompson and Kathy Morgan-Thompson, and Defendant, Contours Express, LLC, entered into a written franchise agreement concerning the operation of their location.  

692. That pursuant to that franchise agreement, franchisor agreed to provide pre-opening and post-opening support. 

693. That franchisor did not use reasonable efforts to help Plaintiffs analyze and evaluate a proposed site for their location.

694. That franchisor did not consult and advise Plaintiffs on their site selection, failed to procure any necessary licenses or permits, failed to assist in ordering any initial inventory other than equipment, and failed to manage construction and refurbishing of the franchise location.

695. That franchisor did not provide any additional employees or any initial training once they were in possession of the approved location but before they opened the location. 

696. That franchisor did not assist the Plaintiffs at any time regarding the operation problems of the location.

697. That franchisor failed to make any periodic visits to Plaintiffs’ location for consultation, assistance, or guidance.

698. That, in fact, Defendants failed to provide any guidance, assistance, or other resources to assist Plaintiffs in the operation of their location.

699. That Defendants breached their contract with Plaintiffs in additional respects including, the implied covenant of good faith and fair dealing.

700. That as a direct and proximate result of the breach of Defendants as aforesaid, Plaintiffs sustained damage.

WHEREFORE, for the foregoing reasons, Plaintiffs pray judgment against Defendants, and each of them, in a sum that is fair and reasonable in excess of $25,000.00, their costs herein expended, and for such other relief that the Court deems just and proper.

COUNT 65: DENISE THURMOND AND SHAUUNA HARRELSON
FRAUD IN THE INDUCEMENT


COMES NOW, Denise Thurmond and Shauuna Harrelson and for their cause of action against Defendants, states as follows:

701. Plaintiffs reallege and incorporate herein by reference each and every allegation contained in Paragraphs 1 through 114 of the Petition for Damages.

702. That Denise Thurmond and Shauuna Harrelson bought and operated a Contours Express franchise located at 17817 FM 529, Suite 135, Houston, TX 77095.  

703. That prior to purchasing their franchise location, Plaintiffs had discussions with Bill Helton in person in Florida.

704. That Plaintiffs also received a letter from Darren Carter, a representative of the franchisor, stating that a franchise could be opened for approximately $40,000. 

705. That in that same communication came an itemization stating that the total cost would be between $30,690 and $4,690.

706. That said letter was not dated but was received in a package from the frachisor with a letter from James Hogg, a representative of the franchisor, and included a confidential franchise application date October 28, 2003.

707. That prior to the purchase of their location, Plaintiffs were provided with a UFOC in December of 2003 by Darren Carter, a representative of the franchisor.

708. That said UFOC made certain claims as to the expenses required to open and operate a franchise location.  

709. That said representation within the UFOC and representations made by Mr. Helton and Mr. Carter were false and Defendants knew them to be false.  

710. Defendants intended for Plaintiffs to rely on said misrepresentations and in so relying, Plaintiffs did so, reasonably and justifiably.

711. That as a result of the misrepresentations and Plaintiffs’ reliance thereon, they entered into a franchise agreement with the franchisor.  That as a direct and proximate result of the misrepresentations of the Defendants, Plaintiffs sustained damage.

WHEREFORE, for the foregoing reasons, Plaintiffs pray judgment against Defendants, and each of them, in a sum that is fair and reasonable in excess of $25,000.00, their costs herein expended, and for such other relief the Court deems just and proper.

COUNT 66: DENISE THURMOND AND SHAUUNA HARRELSON

BREACH OF CONTRACT

COMES NOW, Denise Thurmond and Shauuna Harrelson and for their cause of action against Defendants, states as follows:

712. Plaintiffs reallege and incorporate by reference as a fully set forth herein of each and every allegation contained in Paragraphs 1 through 114 of the Petition for Damages.

713. That Plaintiffs, Denise Thurmond and Shauuna Harrelson, and Defendant, Contours Express, LLC, entered into a written franchise agreement concerning the operation of their location.  

714. That pursuant to that franchise agreement, franchisor agreed to provide pre-opening and post-opening support.  

715. That franchisor did not use reasonable efforts to help Plaintiffs analyze and evaluate a proposed site for their location.

716. That franchisor did not consult and advise Plaintiffs on their site selection, failed to procure any necessary licenses or permits, failed to assist in ordering any initial inventory other than equipment, and failed to manage construction and refurbishing of the franchise location.

717. That franchisor failed to provide the Plaintiffs with one additional employee and one initial training course after they were in possession of their location but before they opened.

718. That franchisor failed to provide the Plaintiffs with one of its representatives for supervisory or assistance with the grand opening of their location for three days.

719. That Plaintiffs repeatedly requested assistance from the franchisor but their phone calls were rarely returned.

720. That franchisor failed to make any periodic visits to Plaintiffs’ location for consultation, assistance, or guidance.

721. That, in fact, Defendants failed to provide any guidance, assistance, or other resources to assist Plaintiffs in the operation of their location.

722. That Defendants breached their contract with Plaintiffs in additional respects including, the implied covenant of good faith and fair dealing.  

723. That as a direct and proximate result of the breach of Defendants as aforesaid, Plaintiffs sustained damage

WHEREFORE, for the foregoing reasons, Plaintiffs pray judgment against Defendants, and each of them, in a sum that is fair and reasonable in excess of $25,000.00, their costs herein expended, and for such other relief that the Court deems just and proper.

COUNT 67: ANN MARIE MCVEA AND VINCENT MARINO
FRAUD IN THE INDUCEMENT

COME NOW, Ann Marie McVea and Vincent Marino and for their cause of action against Defendants, states as follows:

724. Plaintiffs re-allege and incorporate herein by reference each and every allegation contained in Paragraphs 1 through 114 of the Petition for Damages.

725. That Ann Marie McVea and Vincent Marino bought and operated a Contours Express franchise located at 65 East Merrick Rd, Amityville, NY 11701.  

726. That prior to purchasing this location, Plaintiffs had discussions with Carolyn Woodward, a representative of the franchisor.

727. That franchisor’s representative represented to Plaintiffs that the initial start up costs would be approximately $50,000 and that they should break even and make a profit within three to six months.

728. That in the latter part of 2003, Plaintiffs were provided with a UFOC by the franchisor.

729. That said UFOC made certain claims as to the expenses required to open and operate a franchise location.  

730. That said representation within the UFOC and the representations made by the representative of the Defendants were false and Defendants knew them to be false.  

731. Defendants intended for Plaintiffs to rely on said misrepresentations and in so relying, Plaintiffs did so, reasonably and justifiably.

732. That as a result of the misrepresentations and Plaintiffs’ reliance thereon, they entered into a franchise agreement with the franchisor.  That as a direct and proximate result of the misrepresentations of the Defendants, Plaintiffs sustained damage.

WHEREFORE, for the foregoing reasons, Plaintiffs pray judgment against Defendants, and each of them, in a sum that is fair and reasonable in excess of $25,000.00, their costs herein expended, and for such other relief the Court deems just and proper.

COUNT 68: ANN MARIE MCVEA AND VINCENT MARINO

BREACH OF CONTRACT

COME NOW, Ann Marie McVea and Vincent Marino and for their cause of action against Defendants, states as follows:

733. Plaintiffs re-allege and incorporate by reference as a fully set forth herein of each and every allegation contained in Paragraphs 1 through 114 of the Petition for Damages.

734. That Plaintiffs, Ann Marie McVea and Vincent Marino, and Defendant, Contours Express, LLC, entered into a written franchise agreement concerning the operation of their location.  

735. That pursuant to that franchise agreement, franchisor agreed to provide pre-opening and post-opening support. 

736. That franchisor did not use reasonable efforts to help Plaintiffs analyze and evaluate a proposed site for their location.

737. That franchisor did not consult and advise Plaintiffs on their site selection, failed to procure any necessary licenses or permits, failed to assist in ordering any initial inventory other than equipment, and failed to manage construction and refurbishing of the franchise location.

738.  That franchisor failed to provide the Plaintiffs with one additional employee and one initial training course after they were in possession of their location but before they opened.

739. That franchisor provided the Plaintiffs with one of its representatives for supervisory assistance for only two days for the grand opening of their location.

740. That franchisor failed to make any periodic visits to Plaintiffs’ location for consultation, assistance, or guidance and failed to assist with any operational problems.

741. That, in fact, Defendants failed to provide any guidance, assistance, or other resources to assist Plaintiffs in the operation of their location.

742. That Defendants breached their contract with Plaintiffs in additional respects including, the implied covenant of good faith and fair dealing.

743. That as a direct and proximate result of the breach of Defendants as aforesaid, Plaintiffs sustained damage.

WHEREFORE, for the foregoing reasons, Plaintiffs pray judgment against Defendants, and each of them, in a sum that is fair and reasonable in excess of $25,000.00, their costs herein expended, and for such other relief that the Court deems just and proper.

COUNT 69: RUTH ANN ROACH
FRAUD IN THE INDUCEMENT


COMES NOW, Ruth Ann Roach and for her cause of action against Defendants, states as follows:

744. Plaintiff realleges and incorporates herein by reference each and every allegation contained in Paragraphs 1 through 114 of the Petition for Damages.

745. That prior to purchasing her location, Plaintiff had discussions with Keith, an employee of the franchisor.

746. That Plaintiff was told by Keith that she should be making a profit once she obtained 150 members.

747. That in mid 2005, Plaintiff by provided with a UFOC by Defendants.  

748. That said UFOC made certain claims as to the expenses required to operate a franchise location.  

749. That said representation within the UFOC and the representations made by the representative of the Defendants were false and Defendants knew them to be false.  

750. That Defendants intended for Plaintiff to rely on said misrepresentations and in so relying, Plaintiff did so, reasonably and justifiably.

751. That as a result of the misrepresentations and Plaintiff’s reliance thereon, she entered into a franchise agreement with the franchisor.  That as a direct and proximate result of the misrepresentations of the Defendants, Plaintiff sustained damage.

WHEREFORE, for the foregoing reasons, Plaintiff prays judgment against Defendants, and each of them, in a sum that is fair and reasonable in excess of $25,000.00, her costs herein expended, and for such other relief the Court deems just and proper.

COUNT 70: RUTH ANN ROACH

BREACH OF CONTRACT

COMES NOW, Ruth Ann Roach and for her cause of action against Defendants, states as follows:

752. Plaintiff realleges and incorporates by reference as a fully set forth herein of each and every allegation contained in Paragraphs 1 through 114 of the Petition for Damages.

753. That Plaintiff, Ruth Ann Roach, and Defendant, Contours Express, LLC, entered into a written franchise agreement concerning the operation of her location.  

754. That pursuant to that franchise agreement, franchisor agreed to provide pre-opening and post-opening support.

755. That franchisor did not use reasonable efforts to help Plaintiff analyze and evaluate a proposed site for her location.  

756. That franchisor did provide Plaintiff with one of its representatives to provide assistance and guidance for three days of the grand opening, but said person was not able to help her with her new software.

757. That franchisor failed to make any periodic visits to Plaintiff’s location for consultation, assistance, or guidance.

758. That, in fact, Defendants failed to provide any guidance, assistance, or other resources to assist Plaintiff in the operation of her location.

759. That Defendants breached their contract with Plaintiff in additional respects including, the implied covenant of good faith and fair dealing.  

760. That as a direct and proximate result of the breach of Defendants as aforesaid, Plaintiff sustained damage.

WHEREFORE, for the foregoing reasons, Plaintiff prays judgment against Defendants, and each of them, in a sum that is fair and reasonable in excess of $25,000.00, her costs herein expended, and for such other relief that the Court deems just and proper.

COUNT 71: NANSI BARRIE AND RUZENA DANCIGER
FRAUD IN THE INDUCEMENT


COME NOW, Nansi Barrie and Ruzena Danciger and for their cause of action against Defendants, states as follows:

761. Plaintiffs re-allege and incorporate herein by reference each and every allegation contained in Paragraphs 1 through 114 of the Petition for Damages.

762. That Nansi Barrie and Ruzena Danciger bought and operated a Contours Express franchise located at 116 East 57th St, New York, NY  10022.  

763. That prior to purchasing their location, Plaintiffs had discussions with Bill Helton and other representatives of the franchisor.

764. That prior to purchasing their location, Plaintiffs were provided with a UFOC which certain claims as to the expenses required to open and operate a franchise location.

765. That said representation within the UFOC were false and Defendants knew them to be false.  

766. That said UFOC was forwarded to Plaintiffs in April of 2006.

767. Defendants intended for Plaintiffs to rely on said misrepresentations and in so relying, Plaintiffs did so, reasonably and justifiably.

768. That as a result of the misrepresentations and Plaintiffs’ reliance thereon, they entered into a franchise agreement with the franchisor.  That as a direct and proximate result of the misrepresentations of the Defendants, Plaintiffs sustained damage.

WHEREFORE, for the foregoing reasons, Plaintiffs pray judgment against Defendants, and each of them, in a sum that is fair and reasonable in excess of $25,000.00, their costs herein expended, and for such other relief the Court deems just and proper.

COUNT 72: NANSI BARRIE AND RUZENA DANCIGER

BREACH OF CONTRACT

COME NOW, Nansi Barrie and Ruzena Danciger and for their cause of action against Defendants, states as follows:

769. Plaintiffs re-allege and incorporate by reference as a fully set forth herein of each and every allegation contained in Paragraphs 1 through 114 of the Petition for Damages.

770. That Plaintiffs, Nansi Barrie and Ruzena Danciger, and Defendant, Contours Express, LLC, entered into a written franchise agreement concerning the operation of their location.  

771. That pursuant to that franchise agreement, franchisor agreed to provide pre-opening and post-opening support.  

772. That Defendants failed to provide any guidance, assistance, or other resources to assist Plaintiffs in the operation of their location.

773. That Defendants breached their contract with Plaintiffs in additional respects including, the implied covenant of good faith and fair dealing.

774. That as a direct and proximate result of the breach of Defendants as aforesaid, Plaintiffs sustained damage.

WHEREFORE, for the foregoing reasons, Plaintiffs pray judgment against Defendants, and each of them, in a sum that is fair and reasonable in excess of $25,000.00, their costs herein expended, and for such other relief that the Court deems just and proper.

COUNT 73: G&G FITNESS, LLC
FRAUD IN THE INDUCEMENT


COMES NOW, G&G Fitness, LLC and for its cause of action against Defendants, states as follows:

775. Plaintiff realleges and incorporates herein by reference each and every allegation contained in Paragraphs 1 through 114 of the Petition for Damages.

776. That G&G Fitness, LLC bought and operated a Contours Express franchise located at 800 South Main St, Suite E, Nicholasville, KY  40356.  

777. That prior to purchasing said location, Plaintiff had discussions with Darren Carter, an employee of the franchisor, and a prior owner of the club purchased by Plaintiff.

778. That at the time Plaintiff was considering the purchase of the club, Mr. Carter made certain representations as to the number of members that were in that franchise location and said numbers proved to be false.

779. The prior to purchasing the location, Plaintiff was provided with a UFOC by Defendants.

780. That said UFOC made certain claims as to the expenses required to operate a franchise location.  

781. That said representation within the UFOC and by Mr. Carter were false and Defendants knew them to be false.  

782. Defendants intended for Plaintiff to rely on said misrepresentations and in so relying, Plaintiff did so, reasonably and justifiably.

783. That as a result of the misrepresentations and Plaintiff’s reliance thereon, it entered into a franchise agreement with the franchisor.  That as a direct and proximate result of the misrepresentations of the Defendants, Plaintiff sustained damage.

WHEREFORE, for the foregoing reasons, Plaintiff prays judgment against Defendants, and each of them, in a sum that is fair and reasonable in excess of $25,000.00, its costs herein expended, and for such other relief the Court deems just and proper.

COUNT 74: G&G FITNESS, LLC

BREACH OF CONTRACT

COMES NOW, G&G Fitness, LLC and for its cause of action against Defendants, states as follows:

784. Plaintiff realleges and incorporates by reference as a fully set forth herein of each and every allegation contained in Paragraphs 1 through 114 of the Petition for Damages.

785. That Plaintiff, G&G Fitness, LLC, and Defendant, Contours Express, LLC, entered into a written franchise agreement concerning the operation of its location.  

786. That pursuant to that franchise agreement, franchisor agreed to provide post-opening support.  

787. That franchisor failed to provide any ongoing support to Plaintiff after Plaintiff made numerous attempts to obtain said assistance from the franchisor.

788. That Plaintiff’s location was in the same town as the headquarters for the franchisor and the franchisor would send over training classes to view Plaintiff’s club.

789. That franchisor never made any sort of inspection to assist Plaintiff in the operation of her club.

790. That, at one point, franchisor recommended that the signage on Plaintiff’s location be changed and updated since that store was the model store for the franchisor.

791. That said changes, even though approved by the Plaintiff, were never made by the franchisor.

792. That Plaintiff, through its representative Julie Gentry, went to corporate offices on several occasions for questioning and assistance to keep the location running.

793. That franchisor failed and refused to provide Plaintiff with any sort of assistance. 

794. That Plaintiff attempted to contact Bill Helton, then president of the franchisor, concerning certain complaints that she had.

795. That Mr. Helton failed and refused to ever respond to any of the emails from the Plaintiff.

796. That, in fact, Defendants failed to provide any guidance, assistance, or other resources to assist Plaintiff in the operation of its location.

797. That Defendants breached their contract with Plaintiff in additional respects including, the implied covenant of good faith and fair dealing.  

798. That as a direct and proximate result of the breach of Defendants as aforesaid, Plaintiff sustained damage.


WHEREFORE, for the foregoing reasons, Plaintiff prays judgment against Defendants, and each of them, in a sum that is fair and reasonable in excess of $25,000.00, its costs herein expended, and for such other relief that the Court deems just and proper.

COUNT 75: SHANNA SAYRE
FRAUD IN THE INDUCEMENT


COMES NOW, Shanna Sayre and for her cause of action against Defendants, states as follows:

799. Plaintiff realleges and incorporates herein by reference each and every allegation contained in Paragraphs 1 through 114 of the Petition for Damages.

800. That Shanna Sayre bought and operated a Contours Express franchise located at 2836 Bellflower Blvd, Long Beach, CA  90815.  

801. That prior to purchasing her franchise, Plaintiff had several discussions with Clay Neff, an employee of the franchisor. 

802. That said calls were in the month of April through June of 2005.

803. That Mr. Neff apparently researched the proposed location of the Plaintiff’s franchise and told Plaintiff she should be able to get 400 to 600 members with no problem.

804. That Mr. Neff specifically asked Plaintiff in one of these telephone conversations how much she wanted to earn in the first year.

805. That Plaintiff responded with $60,000.00 would be comfortable, to which Mr. Neff responded that it would be no problem.

806. That on or about May 9, 2005, Mr. Neff forwarded a copy of the new UFOC to Plaintiff.

807. That said UFOC made certain claims as to the expenses required to operate a franchise location.  

808. That said representation made by Mr. Neff to Plaintiff prior to her purchasing her location and the representations within the UFOC were false and Defendants knew them to be false.  

809. Defendants intended for Plaintiff to rely on said misrepresentations and in so relying, Plaintiff did so, reasonably and justifiably.

810. That as a result of the misrepresentations and Plaintiff’s reliance thereon, she entered into a franchise agreement with the franchisor.  That as a direct and proximate result of the misrepresentations of the Defendants, Plaintiff sustained damage.

WHEREFORE, for the foregoing reasons, Plaintiff prays judgment against Defendants, and each of them, in a sum that is fair and reasonable in excess of $25,000.00, her costs herein expended, and for such other relief the Court deems just and proper.

COUNT 76: SHANNA SAYRE

BREACH OF CONTRACT

COMES NOW, Shanna Sayre and for her cause of action against Defendants, states as follows:

811. Plaintiff realleges and incorporates by reference as a fully set forth herein of each and every allegation contained in Paragraphs 1 through 114 of the Petition for Damages. 

812. That Plaintiff, Shanna Sayre, and Defendant, Contours Express, LLC, entered into a written franchise agreement concerning the operation of her location.  

813. That pursuant to that franchise agreement, franchisor agreed to provide pre-opening and post-opening support.  

814. That franchisor did not use reasonable efforts to help Plaintiff analyze and evaluate a proposed site for her location.

815. That franchisor did not consult and advise Plaintiff on her site selection, failed to procure any necessary licenses or permits, and failed to manage construction and refurbishing of the franchise location.

816. That franchisor failed to make any periodic visits to Plaintiff’s location for consultation, assistance, or guidance.

817. That Defendants failed to provide any guidance, assistance, or other resources to assist Plaintiff in the operation of her location.

818. That Defendants breached their contract with Plaintiff in additional respects including, the implied covenant of good faith and fair dealing.  

819. That as a direct and proximate result of the breach of Defendants as aforesaid, Plaintiff sustained damage.


WHEREFORE, for the foregoing reasons, Plaintiff prays judgment against Defendants, and each of them, in a sum that is fair and reasonable in excess of $25,000.00, her costs herein expended, and for such other relief that the Court deems just and proper.

COUNT 77: JENWEST, INC
FRAUD IN THE INDUCEMENT


COMES NOW, JenWest, Inc and for its cause of action against Defendants, states as follows:

820. Plaintiff realleges and incorporates herein by reference each and every allegation contained in Paragraphs 1 through 114 of the Petition for Damages.

821. That JenWest, Inc bought and operated a Contours Express franchise located at 1165 East Marion St, Shelby, NC  28150.  

822. That prior to purchasing its location, Plaintiff, through its representative Jennifer Westmoreland, contacted Mike Widener, an employee of the franchisor, in June of 2004.

823. That at that point, Plaintiff decided it was not the right time to go forward with this business opportunity.

824. That Mr. Widener contacted Ms. Westmoreland in September of 2004 to tell her that the franchise fee would go up $2000.00 in January of 2005.

825. That Plaintiff contacted the franchisor again in June of 2005 ready to proceed with the purchase of its franchise location.

826. That Plaintiff was provided with the UFOC in June of 2005 by Mike Widener.

827. That said UFOC made certain claims as to the expenses required to open and operate a franchise location.  

828. That said representation within the UFOC were false and Defendants knew them to be false.  

829. Defendants intended for Plaintiff to rely on said misrepresentations and in so relying, Plaintiff did so, reasonably and justifiably.

830. That as a result of the misrepresentations and Plaintiff’s reliance thereon, it entered into a franchise agreement with the franchisor.  That as a direct and proximate result of the misrepresentations of the Defendants, Plaintiff sustained damage.

WHEREFORE, for the foregoing reasons, Plaintiff prays judgment against Defendants, and each of them, in a sum that is fair and reasonable in excess of $25,000.00, its costs herein expended, and for such other relief the Court deems just and proper.

COUNT 78: JENWEST, INC

BREACH OF CONTRACT

COMES NOW, JenWest, Inc and for its cause of action against Defendants, states as follows:

831. Plaintiff realleges and incorporates by reference as a fully set forth herein of each and every allegation contained in Paragraphs 1 through 114 of the Petition for Damages.

832. That Plaintiff, JenWest, Inc, and Defendant, Contours Express, LLC, entered into a written franchise agreement concerning the operation of its location.  

833. That pursuant to that franchise agreement, franchisor agreed to provide pre-opening and post-opening support.

834. That franchisor did not use reasonable efforts to help Plaintiff analyze and evaluate a proposed site for its location.  

835. That franchisor did not consult and advise Plaintiff on its site selection, failed to procure any necessary licenses or permits, and failed to assist in ordering any initial inventory other than equipment.

836. That franchisor did not consult or advise Plaintiff on the steps necessary to open a franchise location according to a mutually agreed upon date.

837. That franchisor did not assist the Plaintiff at any time regarding the operation problems of the location.

838. That franchisor failed to make any periodic visits to Plaintiff’s location for consultation, assistance, or guidance.

839. That, in fact, Defendants failed to provide any guidance, assistance, or other resources to assist Plaintiff in the operation of its location.

840. That Defendants breached their contract with Plaintiff in additional respects including, the implied covenant of good faith and fair dealing.  

841. That as a direct and proximate result of the breach of Defendants as aforesaid, Plaintiff sustained damage.


WHEREFORE, for the foregoing reasons, Plaintiff prays judgment against Defendants, and each of them, in a sum that is fair and reasonable in excess of $25,000.00, its costs herein expended, and for such other relief that the Court deems just and proper.

COUNT 79: SLIM CHICKS, INC
FRAUD IN THE INDUCEMENT


COMES NOW, Slim Chicks, Inc and for its cause of action against Defendants, states as follows:

842. Plaintiff realleges and incorporates herein by reference each and every allegation contained in Paragraphs 1 through 114 of the Petition for Damages.

843. That Slim Chicks, Inc bought and operated a Contours Express franchise located at 559 East Interstate 30, Rockwall, TX  75087.  

844. That prior to purchasing its location, Plaintiff received a UFOC from Defendants through their representative, Clay Neff, which came to Plaintiff on or about April 5, 2006.

845. That said UFOC made certain claims as to the expenses required to open and operate a franchise location.  

846. That said representation within the UFOC were false and Defendants knew them to be false.  

847. Defendants intended for Plaintiff to rely on said misrepresentations and in so relying, Plaintiff did so, reasonably and justifiably.

848. That as a result of the misrepresentations and Plaintiff’s reliance thereon, it entered into a franchise agreement with the franchisor.  That as a direct and proximate result of the misrepresentations of the Defendants, Plaintiff sustained damage.

WHEREFORE, for the foregoing reasons, Plaintiff prays judgment against Defendants, and each of them, in a sum that is fair and reasonable in excess of $25,000.00, its costs herein expended, and for such other relief the Court deems just and proper.

COUNT 80: SLIM CHICKS, INC

BREACH OF CONTRACT

COMES NOW, Slim Chicks, Inc and for its cause of action against Defendants, states as follows:

849. Plaintiff realleges and incorporates by reference as a fully set forth herein of each and every allegation contained in Paragraphs 1 through 114 of the Petition for Damages.

850. That Plaintiff, Slim Chicks, Inc, and Defendant, Contours Express, LLC, entered into a written franchise agreement concerning the operation of its location. 

851. That pursuant to that franchise agreement, franchisor agreed to provide pre-opening and post-opening support.  

852. That franchisor did not use reasonable efforts to help Plaintiff analyze and evaluate a proposed site for its location.

853. That franchisor failed to manage construction and refurbishing of the franchise location.

854. That Plaintiff called and emailed franchisor several times with questions and requests for help pertaining to marketing and operation materials.

855. That the responses of the franchisor were always very late and were received only after many calls and emails.

856. That said responses provided little or no assistance.

857. That franchisor failed to make any periodic visits to Plaintiff’s location for consultation, assistance, or guidance.

858. That Defendants, in fact, failed to provide any guidance, assistance, or other resources to assist Plaintiff in the operation of its location.

859. That Defendants breached their contract with Plaintiff in additional respects including, the implied covenant of good faith and fair dealing.  

860. That as a direct and proximate result of the breach of Defendants as aforesaid, Plaintiff sustained damage.


WHEREFORE, for the foregoing reasons, Plaintiff prays judgment against Defendants, and each of them, in a sum that is fair and reasonable in excess of $25,000.00, its costs herein expended, and for such other relief that the Court deems just and proper.

COUNT 81: JIM CLOYD
FRAUD IN THE INDUCEMENT


COME NOW, Jim Cloyd and for his cause of action against Defendants, states as follows:

861. Plaintiff re-alleges and incorporates herein by reference each and every allegation contained in Paragraphs 1 through 114 of the Petition for Damages.

862. That Jim Cloyd bought and operated a Contours Express franchise located at 475 East Northfield Dr, Suite C, Brownsburg, IN  46112.  

863. That prior to Plaintiff deciding to purchase his location, he had discussions with Cindi Becker and Bill Helton, employees of the franchisor.

864. That Plaintiff was told by Mr. Helton that he would be making money within 3 months.

865. That Mr. Helton further told Plaintiff that he had 270 members in the Leesburg, Florida location before he ever opened for business.

866. That prior to Plaintiff purchasing his location, he was provided with a UFOC by Defendants, which was mailed by Bill Helton in the first week of December of 2005.

867. That said UFOC made certain claims as to the expenses required to open and operate a franchise location.  

868. That said representation within the UFOC and representations made by Mr. Helton were false and Defendants knew them to be false.  

869. Defendants intended for Plaintiff to rely on said misrepresentations and in so relying, Plaintiff did so, reasonably and justifiably.

870. That as a result of the misrepresentations and Plaintiff’s reliance thereon, he entered into a franchise agreement with the franchisor.  That as a direct and proximate result of the misrepresentations of the Defendants, Plaintiff sustained damage.

WHEREFORE, for the foregoing reasons, Plaintiff prays judgment against Defendants, and each of them, in a sum that is fair and reasonable in excess of $25,000.00, his costs herein expended, and for such other relief the Court deems just and proper.

COUNT 82: JIM CLOYD

BREACH OF CONTRACT


COME NOW, Jim Cloyd and for his cause of action against Defendants, states as follows:

871. Plaintiff re-alleges and incorporates by reference as a fully set forth herein of each and every allegation contained in Paragraphs 1 through 114 of the Petition for Damages.

872. That Plaintiff, Jim Cloyd, and Defendant, Contours Express, LLC, entered into a written franchise agreement concerning the operation of his location.  

873. That pursuant to that franchise agreement, franchisor agreed to provide pre-opening and post-opening support.  

874. That franchisor did not use reasonable efforts to help Plaintiff analyze and evaluate a proposed site for his location.

875. That franchisor did not consult and advise Plaintiff on his site selection, failed to procure any necessary licenses or permits, failed to assist in ordering any initial inventory other than equipment, and failed to manage construction and refurbishing of the franchise location.

876. That franchisor did not assist the Plaintiff at any time regarding the operation problems of the location

877. That franchisor failed to make any periodic visits to Plaintiff’s location for consultation, assistance, or guidance.

878. That, in fact, Defendants failed to provide any guidance, assistance, or other resources to assist Plaintiff in the operation of his location.

879. That Defendants breached their contract with Plaintiff in additional respects including, the implied covenant of good faith and fair dealing.

880. That as a direct and proximate result of the breach of Defendants as aforesaid, Plaintiff sustained damage.

WHEREFORE, for the foregoing reasons, Plaintiff prays judgment against Defendants, and each of them, in a sum that is fair and reasonable in excess of $25,000.00, his costs herein expended, and for such other relief that the Court deems just and proper.

COUNT 83: J.P. HARRISON, INC
FRAUD IN THE INDUCEMENT


COME NOW, J.P. Harrison, Inc and for its cause of action against Defendants, states as follows:

881. Plaintiff re-alleges and incorporates herein by reference each and every allegation contained in Paragraphs 1 through 114 of the Petition for Damages.

882. That J.P. Harrison, Inc bought and operated a Contours Express franchise located at 6558 North Wayne Rd, Westland, MI  48185.  

883. That prior to purchasing its franchise, Plaintiff, through its representative Dan Harrison, communicated with Bill Helton and Keith Bziki via telephone and email.

884. That said communications in August and September of 2005.

885. That prior to Plaintiff purchasing its location, it was provided with a UFOC, that was mailed by Keith Bziki in August or September of 2005.

886. That said UFOC made certain claims as to the expenses required to operate a franchise location.  

887. That said representation within the UFOC were false and Defendants knew them to be false.  

888. Defendants intended for Plaintiff to rely on said misrepresentations and in so relying, Plaintiff did so, reasonably and justifiably.

889. That as a result of the misrepresentations and Plaintiff’s reliance thereon, he entered into a franchise agreement with the franchisor.  That as a direct and proximate result of the misrepresentations of the Defendants, Plaintiff sustained damage.

WHEREFORE, for the foregoing reasons, Plaintiff prays judgment against Defendants, and each of them, in a sum that is fair and reasonable in excess of $25,000.00, its costs herein expended, and for such other relief the Court deems just and proper.

COUNT 84: J.P. HARRISON, INC

BREACH OF CONTRACT

COME NOW, J.P. Harrison, Inc and for its cause of action against Defendants, states as follows:

890. Plaintiff re-alleges and incorporates by reference as a fully set forth herein of each and every allegation contained in Paragraphs 1 through 114 of the Petition for Damages.

891. That Plaintiff, J.P. Harrison, Inc, and Defendant, Contours Express, LLC, entered into a written franchise agreement concerning the operation of its location.  

892. That pursuant to that franchise agreement, franchisor agreed to provide pre-opening and post-opening support. 

893. That franchisor failed to make any periodic visits to Plaintiff’s location for consultation, assistance, or guidance. 

894. That franchisor attempted to provide training to the franchisee via weekly telephone calls.

895. That for the most part the calls did offer much more than moral support.

896. That any other ideas received in the telephone calls were previously offered and yielded no results.

897. That, in fact, Defendants failed to provide any guidance, assistance, or other resources to assist Plaintiff in the operation of its location.

898. That Defendants breached their contract with Plaintiff in additional respects including, the implied covenant of good faith and fair dealing.

899. That as a direct and proximate result of the breach of Defendants as aforesaid, Plaintiff sustained damage.

WHEREFORE, for the foregoing reasons, Plaintiff prays judgment against Defendants, and each of them, in a sum that is fair and reasonable in excess of $25,000.00, its costs herein expended, and for such other relief that the Court deems just and proper.

COUNT 85: KATHRYN JAMES INVESTMENTS, INC
FRAUD IN THE INDUCEMENT


COMES NOW, Kathryn James Investments, Inc and for its cause of action against Defendants, states as follows:

900. Plaintiff realleges and incorporates herein by reference each and every allegation contained in Paragraphs 1 through 114 of the Petition for Damages.

901. That Kathryn James Investments, Inc bought and operated a Contours Express franchise located at 802 South MacArthur Blvd, Suite 101, Coppell, TX  75019.  

902. That prior to purchasing its franchise, Plaintiff, by and through its representative, Kathryn James, had discussions with Clay Neff, an employee of the franchisor.

903. That in January of 2006, Kathryn James made an internet inquiry about Contours Express and received a call from Mr. Neff who said he would send a packet of information.

904. That Plaintiff received that packet of information in overnight mail the next day.

905. That included in that package was a letter from Darren Carter identified as the CEO of the franchise, which stated that a Contours Express location could be opened for approximately $40,000.00.

906. That Mr. Neff provided very little information except for an example of a franchise that opened in January of 2006 and had already enroll about 200 members by March of 2006.

907. That when Kathryn James inquired to Mr. Neff as to why that franchise has been so successful, Mr. Neff said the franchisee did what the franchisor told him to do and Mr. Neff indicated that that was all that was required to be successful.

908. That Mr. Neff also advised the Plaintiff that his personal franchise units were doing well and were profitable.

909. That Mr. Neff sent the UFOC to Plaintiff in January or February of 2006.

910. That said UFOC made certain claims as to the expenses required to operate a franchise location.  

911. That said representation made by Mr. Neff, Mr. Carter, and within the UFOC were false and Defendants knew them to be false.  

912. Defendants intended for Plaintiff to rely on said misrepresentations and in so relying, Plaintiff did so, reasonably and justifiably.

913. That as a result of the misrepresentations and Plaintiff’s reliance thereon, it entered into a franchise agreement with the franchisor.  That as a direct and proximate result of the misrepresentations of the Defendants, Plaintiff sustained damage.

WHEREFORE, for the foregoing reasons, Plaintiff prays judgment against Defendants, and each of them, in a sum that is fair and reasonable in excess of $25,000.00, its costs herein expended, and for such other relief the Court deems just and proper.

COUNT 86: KATHRYN JAMES INVESTMENTS, INC

BREACH OF CONTRACT

COMES NOW, Kathryn James Investments, Inc and for its cause of action against Defendants, states as follows:

914. Plaintiff realleges and incorporates by reference as a fully set forth herein of each and every allegation contained in Paragraphs 1 through 114 of the Petition for Damages.

915. That Plaintiff, Kathryn James Investments, Inc, and Defendant, Contours Express, LLC, entered into a written franchise agreement concerning the operation of its location.

916. That pursuant to that franchise agreement, franchisor agreed to provide pre-opening and post-opening support.

917. That franchisor did not use reasonable efforts to help Plaintiff analyze and evaluate a proposed site for its location.  

918. That franchisor did not consult and advise Plaintiff on its site selection, failed to procure any necessary licenses or permits, failed to assist in ordering any initial inventory other than equipment, and failed to manage construction and refurbishing of the franchise location.

919. That franchisor provided Plaintiff with a trainer for two and half days for the grand opening of its location.

920. That franchisor failed to make any periodic visits to Plaintiff’s location for consultation, assistance, or guidance and never requested any reports regarding its operations.

921. That, in fact, Defendants failed to provide any guidance, assistance, or other resources to assist Plaintiff in the operation of its location.

922. That Defendants breached their contract with Plaintiff in additional respects including, the implied covenant of good faith and fair dealing.  

923. That as a direct and proximate result of the breach of Defendants as aforesaid, Plaintiff sustained damage.


WHEREFORE, for the foregoing reasons, Plaintiff prays judgment against Defendants, and each of them, in a sum that is fair and reasonable in excess of $25,000.00, its costs herein expended, and for such other relief that the Court deems just and proper.

COUNT 87: DEBORAH LEAHY
FRAUD IN THE INDUCEMENT


COMES NOW, Deborah Leahy and for her cause of action against Defendants, states as follows:

924. Plaintiff realleges and incorporates herein by reference each and every allegation contained in Paragraphs 1 through 114 of the Petition for Damages.

925. That Deborah Leahy bought and operated a Contours Express franchise located at 725 Brookside Dr, Lansing, MI  48917.  

926. That prior to the time of Plaintiff purchasing her franchise location, she had discussions with a representative of the Defendants who forwarded her a UFOC around April of 2005.

927. That said UFOC made certain claims as to the expenses required to open and operate a franchise location.  

928. That said representation within the UFOC were false and Defendants knew them to be false.  

929. Defendants intended for Plaintiff to rely on said misrepresentations and in so relying, Plaintiff did so, reasonably and justifiably.

930. That as a result of the misrepresentations and Plaintiff’s reliance thereon, she entered into a franchise agreement with the franchisor.  That as a direct and proximate result of the misrepresentations of the Defendants, Plaintiff sustained damage.

WHEREFORE, for the foregoing reasons, Plaintiff prays judgment against Defendants, and each of them, in a sum that is fair and reasonable in excess of $25,000.00, her costs herein expended, and for such other relief the Court deems just and proper.

COUNT 88: DEBORAH LEAHY

BREACH OF CONTRACT

COMES NOW, Deborah Leahy and for her cause of action against Defendants, states as follows:

931. Plaintiff realleges and incorporates by reference as a fully set forth herein of each and every allegation contained in Paragraphs 1 through 114 of the Petition for Damages.

932. That Plaintiff, Deborah Leahy, and Defendant, Contours Express, LLC, entered into a written franchise agreement concerning the operation of her location.  

933. That pursuant to that franchise agreement, franchisor agreed to provide pre-opening and post-opening support.  

934. That franchisor did not use reasonable efforts to help Plaintiff analyze and evaluate a proposed site for her location.

935. That franchisor failed to provide the Plaintiff with one of its representatives for supervisory or assistance with the grand opening of her location for three days.

936. That franchisor failed to make any periodic visits to Plaintiff’s location for consultation, assistance, or guidance.

937. That, in fact, Defendants failed to provide any guidance, assistance, or other resources to assist Plaintiff in the operation of her location.

938. That Defendants breached their contract with Plaintiff in additional respects including, the implied covenant of good faith and fair dealing.  

939. That as a direct and proximate result of the breach of Defendants as aforesaid, Plaintiff sustained damage.


WHEREFORE, for the foregoing reasons, Plaintiff prays judgment against Defendants, and each of them, in a sum that is fair and reasonable in excess of $25,000.00, her costs herein expended, and for such other relief that the Court deems just and proper.

COUNT 89: NELLGIAN ELLIS MANAGEMENT, INC
FRAUD IN THE INDUCEMENT


COME NOW, Nelligan Ellis Management, Inc and for its cause of action against Defendants, states as follows:

940. Plaintiff re-alleges and incorporates herein by reference each and every allegation contained in Paragraphs 1 through 114 of the Petition for Damages.

941. That Nelligan Ellis Management, Inc bought and operated a Contours Express franchise located at 31509 Cherry Hill, Westland, MI  48185.  

942. That prior to Plaintiff purchasing its location, Plaintiff had discussions with Bill Helton, an employee of the franchisor, by and through its authorized representatives, Donald Nelligan and Mary Ellis.

943. That said communications with Mr. Helton occurred in June or July of 2006.

944. That Mr. Helton represented to Plaintiff that if Plaintiff had between $10,000 and $15,000 in cash left after the cost of the franchise and equipment that should be more than sufficient funds to operate its location.

945. That Mr. Helton also represented to Plaintiff that it should have no problem obtaining 200 plus members due to the demographics of the area.

946. That Mr. Helton forwarded a UFOC to the Plaintiff in July of 2006.

947. That said UFOC made certain claims as to the expenses required to operate a franchise location.  

948. That said representation made by Mr. Helton and within the UFOC were false and Defendants knew them to be false.  

949. Defendants intended for Plaintiff to rely on said misrepresentations and in so relying, Plaintiff did so, reasonably and justifiably.

950. That as a result of the misrepresentations and Plaintiff’s reliance thereon, it entered into a franchise agreement with the franchisor.  That as a direct and proximate result of the misrepresentations of the Defendants, Plaintiff sustained damage.

WHEREFORE, for the foregoing reasons, Plaintiff prays judgment against Defendants, and each of them, in a sum that is fair and reasonable in excess of $25,000.00, its costs herein expended, and for such other relief the Court deems just and proper.

COUNT 90: NELLIGAN ELLIS MANAGEMENT, INC

BREACH OF CONTRACT

COME NOW, Nelligan Ellis Mangement, Inc and for its cause of action against Defendants, states as follows:

951. Plaintiff re-alleges and incorporates by reference as a fully set forth herein of each and every allegation contained in Paragraphs 1 through 114 of the Petition for Damages.

952. That Plaintiff, Nelligan Ellis Management, Inc, and Defendant, Contours Express, LLC, entered into a written franchise agreement concerning the operation of its location.

953. That pursuant to that franchise agreement, franchisor agreed to provide pre-opening and post-opening support.  

954. That franchisor did not consult and advise Plaintiff on its site selection, failed to procure any necessary licenses or permits, and failed to assist in ordering any initial inventory other than equipment.

955. That franchisor provided a designated corporate trainer who stayed for two and half days during Plaintiff’s grand opening.

956. That said trainer was an owner of another gym and did not offer any advise, criticism, or complements on what Plaintiff was doing or attempting to do.

957. That franchisor failed to make any periodic visits to Plaintiff’s location for consultation, assistance, or guidance.

958. That, in fact, Defendants failed to provide any guidance, assistance, or other resources to assist Plaintiff in the operation of its location.

959. That Defendants breached their contract with Plaintiff in additional respects including, the implied covenant of good faith and fair dealing.

960. That as a direct and proximate result of the breach of Defendants as aforesaid, Plaintiff sustained damage.

WHEREFORE, for the foregoing reasons, Plaintiff prays judgment against Defendants, and each of them, in a sum that is fair and reasonable in excess of $25,000.00, its costs herein expended, and for such other relief that the Court deems just and proper.

COUNT 91: NEXT STEPS, LLC
FRAUD IN THE INDUCEMENT


COMES NOW, Next Steps, LLC and for its cause of action against Defendants, states as follows:

961. Plaintiff realleges and incorporates herein by reference each and every allegation contained in Paragraphs 1 through 114 of the Petition for Damages.

962. That Next Steps, LLC bought and operated a Contours Express franchise located at 350 East Bell Rd, Suite J-8, Phoenix, AZ  85022.  

963. That prior to the time that Plaintiff purchased its location, it had discussions, by and through its representative Claudia Ruppel, with Clay Neff, an employee of the franchisor.

964. That about January of 2005, Clay Neff provided Plaintiff with a UFOC.

965. That said UFOC stated that the set up costs would be between $37,000 and $45,000 for Plaintiff’s location.  

966. That said representation within the UFOC were false and Defendants knew them to be false.  

967. Defendants intended for Plaintiff to rely on said misrepresentations and in so relying, Plaintiff did so, reasonably and justifiably.

968. That as a result of the misrepresentations and Plaintiff’s reliance thereon, it entered into a franchise agreement with the franchisor.  That as a direct and proximate result of the misrepresentations of the Defendants, Plaintiff sustained damage.

WHEREFORE, for the foregoing reasons, Plaintiff prays judgment against Defendants, and each of them, in a sum that is fair and reasonable in excess of $25,000.00, its costs herein expended, and for such other relief the Court deems just and proper.

COUNT 92: NEXT STEPS, LLC

BREACH OF CONTRACT

COMES NOW, Next Steps, LLC and for its cause of action against Defendants, states as follows:

969. Plaintiff realleges and incorporates by reference as a fully set forth herein of each and every allegation contained in Paragraphs 1 through 114 of the Petition for Damages.

970. That Plaintiff, Next Steps, LLC, and Defendant, Contours Express, LLC, entered into a written franchise agreement concerning the operation of its location.  

971. That pursuant to that franchise agreement, franchisor agreed to provide pre-opening and post-opening support.  

972. That franchisor did not assist the Plaintiff at any time regarding the operation problems of the location.

973. That franchisor failed to make any periodic visits to Plaintiff’s location for consultation, assistance, or guidance.

974. That, in fact, Defendants failed to provide any guidance, assistance, or other resources to assist Plaintiff in the operation of its location.

975. That Defendants breached their contract with Plaintiff in additional respects including, the implied covenant of good faith and fair dealing.  

976. That as a direct and proximate result of the breach of Defendants as aforesaid, Plaintiff sustained damage.


WHEREFORE, for the foregoing reasons, Plaintiff prays judgment against Defendants, and each of them, in a sum that is fair and reasonable in excess of $25,000.00, its costs herein expended, and for such other relief that the Court deems just and proper.

COUNT 93: MARY AND KENNETH TAYLOR
FRAUD IN THE INDUCEMENT


COME NOW, Mary and Kenneth Taylor and for their cause of action against Defendants, states as follows:

977. Plaintiffs re-allege and incorporate herein by reference each and every allegation contained in Paragraphs 1 through 114 of the Petition for Damages.

978. That Mary and Kenneth Taylor bought and operated a Contours Express franchise located at 2735 East Carson St, Suite A, Lakewood, CA  90712.  

979. That prior to purchasing their location, Plaintiffs had discussions with James Hogg, an authorized representative of the Defendants.

980. That said discussions occurred in the ladder part of 2003.

981. That Mr. Hogg provided the Plaintiffs with a UFOC in the ladder part of 2003.

982. That said UFOC made certain claims as to the expenses required to open and operate a franchise location.  

983. That said representation within the UFOC, as supported by the representative of the Defendants, were false and Defendants knew them to be false.  

984. Defendants intended for Plaintiffs to rely on said misrepresentations and in so relying, Plaintiffs did so, reasonably and justifiably.

985. That as a result of the misrepresentations and Plaintiffs’ reliance thereon, they entered into a franchise agreement with the franchisor.  That as a direct and proximate result of the misrepresentations of the Defendants, Plaintiffs sustained damage.

WHEREFORE, for the foregoing reasons, Plaintiffs pray judgment against Defendants, and each of them, in a sum that is fair and reasonable in excess of $25,000.00, their costs herein expended, and for such other relief the Court deems just and proper.

COUNT 94: MARY AND KENNETH TAYLOR

BREACH OF CONTRACT

COME NOW, Mary and Kenneth Taylor and for their cause of action against Defendants, states as follows:

986. Plaintiffs re-allege and incorporate by reference as a fully set forth herein of each and every allegation contained in Paragraphs 1 through 114 of the Petition for Damages.

987. That Plaintiffs, Mary and Kenneth Taylor, and Defendant, Contours Express, LLC, entered into a written franchise agreement concerning the operation of their location.  

988. That pursuant to that franchise agreement, franchisor agreed to provide pre-opening and post-opening support.  

989. That franchisor did not use reasonable efforts to help Plaintiffs analyze and evaluate a proposed site for their location.

990. That franchisor did not consult and advise Plaintiffs on their site selection, failed to procure any necessary licenses or permits, failed to assist in ordering any initial inventory other than equipment, and failed to manage construction and refurbishing of the franchise location.

991. That franchisor failed to make any periodic visits to Plaintiffs’ location for consultation, assistance, or guidance.

992. That, in fact, Defendants failed to provide any guidance, assistance, or other resources to assist Plaintiffs in the operation of their location.

993. That Defendants breached their contract with Plaintiffs in additional respects including, the implied covenant of good faith and fair dealing.

994. That as a direct and proximate result of the breach of Defendants as aforesaid, Plaintiffs sustained damage.

WHEREFORE, for the foregoing reasons, Plaintiffs pray judgment against Defendants, and each of them, in a sum that is fair and reasonable in excess of $25,000.00, their costs herein expended, and for such other relief that the Court deems just and proper.

COUNT 95: SANDY RONEY
FRAUD IN THE INDUCEMENT


COMES NOW, Sandy Roney and for her cause of action against Defendants, states as follows:

995. Plaintiff realleges and incorporates herein by reference each and every allegation contained in Paragraphs 1 through 114 of the Petition for Damages.

996. That Sandy Roney bought and operated a Contours Express franchise located at 529 West Main St, Lake Geneva, WI  53147.  

997. That prior to purchasing her location, Plaintiff had discussions with Kevin Bryant, an employee of the franchisor.

998. That franchisor, through its representative, represented to Plaintiff that it would take $30,000 to $40,000 to open her location and to keep it running before it would turn a profit.

999. That it was further represented that Plaintiff should be able to cover all costs and return a profit within 90 days.

1000. That in the ladder of 2005, Mr. Bryant provided Plaintiff with a UFOC.

1001. That said UFOC made certain claims as to the expenses required to operate a franchise location.  

1002. That said representation within the UFOC, as supported Mr. Bryant, were false and Defendants knew them to be false.  

1003. Defendants intended for Plaintiff to rely on said misrepresentations and in so relying, Plaintiff did so, reasonably and justifiably.

1004. That as a result of the misrepresentations and Plaintiff’s reliance thereon, she entered into a franchise agreement with the franchisor.  That as a direct and proximate result of the misrepresentations of the Defendants, Plaintiff sustained damage.

WHEREFORE, for the foregoing reasons, Plaintiff prays judgment against Defendants, and each of them, in a sum that is fair and reasonable in excess of $25,000.00, her costs herein expended, and for such other relief the Court deems just and proper.

COUNT 96: SANDY RONEY

BREACH OF CONTRACT

COMES NOW, Sandy Roney and for her cause of action against Defendants, states as follows:

1005. Plaintiff realleges and incorporates by reference as a fully set forth herein of each and every allegation contained in Paragraphs 1 through 114 of the Petition for Damages.

1006. That Plaintiff, Sandy Roney, and Defendant, Contours Express, LLC, entered into a written franchise agreement concerning the operation of her location.  

1007. That pursuant to that franchise agreement, franchisor agreed to provide pre-opening and post-opening support. 

1008. That franchisor did not use reasonable efforts to help Plaintiff analyze and evaluate a proposed site for her location.

1009. That franchisor did not consult and advise Plaintiff on her site selection, failed to procure any necessary licenses or permits, failed to assist in ordering any initial inventory other than equipment, and failed to manage construction and refurbishing of the franchise location.

1010. That franchisor failed to make any periodic visits to Plaintiff’s location for consultation, assistance, or guidance.

1011. That franchisor did not assist the Plaintiff at any time regarding the operation problems of the location.

1012. That, in fact, Defendants failed to provide any guidance, assistance, or other resources to assist Plaintiff in the operation of her location.

1013. That Defendants breached their contract with Plaintiff in additional respects including, the implied covenant of good faith and fair dealing.  

1014. That as a direct and proximate result of the breach of Defendants as aforesaid, Plaintiff sustained damage.


WHEREFORE, for the foregoing reasons, Plaintiff prays judgment against Defendants, and each of them, in a sum that is fair and reasonable in excess of $25,000.00, her costs herein expended, and for such other relief that the Court deems just and proper.

COUNT 97: EDRICKA BURNETT
FRAUD IN THE INDUCEMENT


COMES NOW, Edricka Burnett and for her cause of action against Defendants, states as follows:

1015. Plaintiff realleges and incorporates herein by reference each and every allegation contained in Paragraphs 1 through 114 of the Petition for Damages.

1016. That Edricka Burnett bought and operated a Contours Express franchise located at 2803 Wrightsboro Rd, Suite 35, Augusta, GA  30909.  

1017. That prior to purchasing her franchise, Plaintiff had discussions with representatives of the Defendants in the ladder part of 2004.

1018. That said representatives forwarded to Plaintiff a UFOC that made certain claims as to the expenses required to open and operate a franchise location.  

1019. That said representation within the UFOC were false and Defendants knew them to be false.  

1020. Defendants intended for Plaintiff to rely on said misrepresentations and in so relying, Plaintiff did so, reasonably and justifiably.

1021. That as a result of the misrepresentations and Plaintiff’s reliance thereon, she entered into a franchise agreement with the franchisor.  That as a direct and proximate result of the misrepresentations of the Defendants, Plaintiff sustained damage.

WHEREFORE, for the foregoing reasons, Plaintiff prays judgment against Defendants, and each of them, in a sum that is fair and reasonable in excess of $25,000.00, her costs herein expended, and for such other relief the Court deems just and proper.

COUNT 98: EDRICKA BURNETT

BREACH OF CONTRACT

COMES NOW, Edricka Burnett and for her cause of action against Defendants, states as follows:

1022. Plaintiff realleges and incorporates by reference as a fully set forth herein of each and every allegation contained in Paragraphs 1 through 114 of the Petition for Damages.

1023. That Plaintiff, Edricka Burnett, and Defendant, Contours Express, LLC, entered into a written franchise agreement concerning the operation of her location.  

1024. That pursuant to that franchise agreement, franchisor agreed to provide pre-opening and post-opening support.  

1025. That franchisor did not use reasonable efforts to help Plaintiff analyze and evaluate a proposed site for her location.

1026. That franchisor did not consult and advise Plaintiff on her site selection, failed to procure any necessary licenses or permits, failed to assist in ordering any initial inventory other than equipment, and failed to manage construction and refurbishing of the franchise location.

1027. That franchisor failed to make any periodic visits to Plaintiff’s location for consultation, assistance, or guidance.

1028. That, in fact, Defendants failed to provide any guidance, assistance, or other resources to assist Plaintiff in the operation of her location.

1029. That Defendants breached their contract with Plaintiff in additional respects including, the implied covenant of good faith and fair dealing.  

1030. That as a direct and proximate result of the breach of Defendants as aforesaid, Plaintiff sustained damage.


WHEREFORE, for the foregoing reasons, Plaintiff prays judgment against Defendants, and each of them, in a sum that is fair and reasonable in excess of $25,000.00, her costs herein expended, and for such other relief that the Court deems just and proper.

COUNT 99: NEW BEGINNING, LLC
FRAUD IN THE INDUCEMENT


COMES NOW, New Beginning, LLC and for its cause of action against Defendants, states as follows:

1031. Plaintiff realleges and incorporates herein by reference each and every allegation contained in Paragraphs 1 through 114 of the Petition for Damages.

1032. That New Beginning, LLC bought and operated a Contours Express franchise located at 1209 Benns Church Blvd, Cypress Run Plaza, Smithfield, VA  23430.  

1033. That New Beginning, LLC also bought the rights to another Contours Express location in Suffolk, VA.  

1034. That at the time of purchasing its locations, Plaintiff had discussion by and through its authorized representative, Mary King, with John Hartline, an authorized representative of the franchisor.

1035. That said discussions occurred in May and June of 2004.

1036. That Mr. Hartline was instructed by the franchisor to represent to Plaintiff that the start up costs for the franchise locations would be $50,000.

1037. That, however, Mr. Hartline, another club owner, told Plaintiff that it would actually cost $75,000 and that she should break even with 250 members.

1038. That in May or June of 2004, Mr. Hartline provided the Plaintiff with a UFOC, which made certain claims as to the expenses required to open and operate a franchise location.  

1039. That said representation within the UFOC and the representations made by the franchisor’s representative were false and Defendants knew them to be false.  

1040. Defendants intended for Plaintiff to rely on said misrepresentations and in so relying, Plaintiff did so, reasonably and justifiably.

1041. That as a result of the misrepresentations and Plaintiff’s reliance thereon, it entered into a franchise agreement with the franchisor.  That as a direct and proximate result of the misrepresentations of the Defendants, Plaintiff sustained damage.

WHEREFORE, for the foregoing reasons, Plaintiff prays judgment against Defendants, and each of them, in a sum that is fair and reasonable in excess of $25,000.00, its costs herein expended, and for such other relief the Court deems just and proper.

COUNT 100: NEW BEGINNING, LLC

BREACH OF CONTRACT

COMES NOW, New Beginning, LLC and for its cause of action against Defendants, states as follows:

1042. Plaintiff realleges and incorporates by reference as a fully set forth herein of each and every allegation contained in Paragraphs 1 through 114 of the Petition for Damages.

1043. That Plaintiff, New Beginning, LLC, and Defendant, Contours Express, LLC, entered into a written franchise agreement concerning the operation of its locations.  

1044. That pursuant to that franchise agreement, franchisor agreed to provide pre-opening and post-opening support.  

1045. That franchisor did not use reasonable efforts to help Plaintiff analyze and evaluate a proposed site for its locations.

1046. That franchisor did not consult and advise Plaintiff on its site selection, failed to procure any necessary licenses or permits, failed to assist in ordering any initial inventory other than equipment, and failed to manage construction and refurbishing of the franchise locations. 

1047. That franchisor failed to make any periodic visits to Plaintiff’s location for consultation, assistance, or guidance.

1048. That, in fact, Defendants failed to provide any guidance, assistance, or other resources to assist Plaintiff in the operation of its locations.

1049. That Defendants breached their contract with Plaintiff in additional respects including, the implied covenant of good faith and fair dealing.  

1050. That as a direct and proximate result of the breach of Defendants as aforesaid, Plaintiff sustained damage.


WHEREFORE, for the foregoing reasons, Plaintiff prays judgment against Defendants, and each of them, in a sum that is fair and reasonable in excess of $25,000.00, its costs herein expended, and for such other relief that the Court deems just and proper.

COUNT 101: VINCENT PIMPINELLA
FRAUD IN THE INDUCEMENT


COME NOW, Vincent Pimpinella and for his cause of action against Defendants, states as follows:

1051. Plaintiff realleges and incorporates herein by reference each and every allegation contained in Paragraphs 1 through 114 of the Petition for Damages.

1052. That Vincent Pimpinella bought and operated a Contours Express franchise located at 852 Long Island Ave, Deer Park, NY  11729.  

1053. That prior to purchasing his location, Plaintiff had discussions with Bill Helton, an employee of the franchisor.

1054. That Mr. Helton represented to Plaintiff that it would cost about $40,000 to open and operate the franchise.

1055. That in February or March of 2006, Mr. Helton forwarded to Plaintiff a UFOC.

1056. That said UFOC made certain claims as to the expenses required to operate a franchise location.  

1057. That said representation within the UFOC and representations of Mr. Helton were false and Defendants knew them to be false.  

1058. Defendants intended for Plaintiff to rely on said misrepresentations and in so relying, Plaintiff did so, reasonably and justifiably.

1059. That as a result of the misrepresentations and Plaintiff’s reliance thereon, he entered into a franchise agreement with the franchisor.  That as a direct and proximate result of the misrepresentations of the Defendants, Plaintiff sustained damage.

WHEREFORE, for the foregoing reasons, Plaintiff prays judgment against Defendants, and each of them, in a sum that is fair and reasonable in excess of $25,000.00, his costs herein expended, and for such other relief the Court deems just and proper.

COUNT 102: VINCENT PIMPINELLA

BREACH OF CONTRACT

COMES NOW, Vincent Pimpinella and for his cause of action against Defendants, states as follows:

1060. Plaintiff realleges and incorporates by reference as a fully set forth herein of each and every allegation contained in Paragraphs 1 through 114 of the Petition for Damages. 

1061. That Plaintiff, Vincent Pimpinella, and Defendant, Contours Express, LLC, entered into a written franchise agreement concerning the operation of his location.  

1062. That pursuant to that franchise agreement, franchisor agreed to provide pre-opening and post-opening support.

1063. That franchisor did not use reasonable efforts to help Plaintiff analyze and evaluate a proposed site for his location.  

1064. That franchisor did not consult and advise Plaintiff on his site selection, failed to procure any necessary licenses or permits, failed to assist in ordering any initial inventory other than equipment, and failed to manage construction and refurbishing of the franchise location.

1065. That franchisor failed to make any periodic visits to Plaintiff’s location for consultation, assistance, or guidance.

1066. That Plaintiff did communicate with the franchisor about operational problems, but franchisor provided no assistance or guidance for said problems.

1067. That, in fact, Defendants failed to provide any guidance, assistance, or other resources to assist Plaintiff in the operation of his location.

1068. That Defendants breached their contract with Plaintiff in additional respects including, the implied covenant of good faith and fair dealing.  

1069. That as a direct and proximate result of the breach of Defendants as aforesaid, Plaintiff sustained damage.


WHEREFORE, for the foregoing reasons, Plaintiff prays judgment against Defendants, and each of them, in a sum that is fair and reasonable in excess of $25,000.00, his costs herein expended, and for such other relief that the Court deems just and proper.

COUNT 103: CHANDRA SALES-TAYLOR
FRAUD IN THE INDUCEMENT


COMES NOW, Chandra Sales-Taylor and for her cause of action against Defendants, states as follows:

1070. Plaintiff realleges and incorporates herein by reference each and every allegation contained in Paragraphs 1 through 114 of the Petition for Damages.

1071. That Chandra Sales-Taylor bought a Contours Express franchise which was to open in Hendersonville, TN.  

1072. That Plaintiff paid her franchise fee, went through training, but never opened her location.

1073. That prior to the time Plaintiff purchased her location, she had discussions with Mike Widener, an employee of the franchisor, in February of 2006.

1074. That Mr. Widener stated to Plaintiff that the start up costs would be from $45,000 to $50,000 with two part time employees and that she would need 150 to 200 members to break even.

1075. That Mr. Widener further stated that she would $6,000 a month to break even.

1076. That Plaintiff was provided with a UFOC by Mr. Widener in February of 2006 via email.

1077. That said UFOC made certain claims as to the expenses required to operate a franchise location. 

1078. That said representation within the UFOC and the representations made by Mr. Widener were false and Defendants knew them to be false.  

1079. Defendants intended for Plaintiff to rely on said misrepresentations and in so relying, Plaintiff did so, reasonably and justifiably.

1080. That as a result of the misrepresentations and Plaintiff’s reliance thereon, she entered into a franchise agreement with the franchisor.  That as a direct and proximate result of the misrepresentations of the Defendants, Plaintiff sustained damage.

WHEREFORE, for the foregoing reasons, Plaintiff prays judgment against Defendants, and each of them, in a sum that is fair and reasonable in excess of $25,000.00, her costs herein expended, and for such other relief the Court deems just and proper.

COUNT 104: CHANDRA SALES-TAYLOR

BREACH OF CONTRACT

COMES NOW, Chandra Sales-Taylor and for her cause of action against Defendants, states as follows:

1081. Plaintiff realleges and incorporates by reference as a fully set forth herein of each and every allegation contained in Paragraphs 1 through 114 of the Petition for Damages.

1082. That Plaintiff, Chandra Sales-Taylor, and Defendant, Contours Express, LLC, entered into a written franchise agreement concerning the operation of her location.  

1083. That pursuant to that franchise agreement, franchisor agreed to provide pre-opening and post-opening support.  

1084. That franchisor failed to provide Plaintiff with accurate numbers regarding the operational costs of a franchise location until after the agreement was signed.

1085. That Plaintiff determined that the costs were not accurate in discussing costs with corporate representatives and other club owners.

1086. That Defendants failed to provide any guidance, assistance, or other resources to assist Plaintiff in the operation of her location.

1087. That Defendants breached their contract with Plaintiff in additional respects including, the implied covenant of good faith and fair dealing.  

1088. That as a direct and proximate result of the breach of Defendants as aforesaid, Plaintiff sustained damage.


WHEREFORE, for the foregoing reasons, Plaintiff prays judgment against Defendants, and each of them, in a sum that is fair and reasonable in excess of $25,000.00, her costs herein expended, and for such other relief that the Court deems just and proper.

COUNT 105: SONIA SHARP
FRAUD IN THE INDUCEMENT


COMES NOW, Sonia Sharp and for her cause of action against Defendants, states as follows:

1089. Plaintiff realleges and incorporates herein by reference each and every allegation contained in Paragraphs 1 through 114 of the Petition for Damages.

1090. That Sonia Sharp bought and operated a Contours Express franchise located at 1727 E. Daily Dr, Suite C, Camarillo, CA  93010.  

1091. That prior to purchasing her location, Plaintiff had discussions with Clay Neff, an employee of the franchisor.

1092. That Plaintiff was provided with a brochure by Mr. Neff that made representations that advertising would be as low as $1,000 and as high as $2,000.

1093. That once Plaintiff had purchased her franchise and was attending her initial training, Mike Widener, an employee of the franchisor, announced that the advertising costs would be from $5,000 to $10,000 for the first three to four months and $10,000 per year after that.

1094. That the brochure provided by Mr. Neff stated that the total investment to open and operate the franchise would be from $34,695 to $49,895.

1095. That on or about November 16, 2004, Plaintiff was provided with a UFOC by Clay Neff.

1096. That said UFOC made certain claims as to the expenses required to operate a franchise location.  

1097. That said representation within the UFOC and made in the information provided by Mr. Neff were false and Defendants knew them to be false.  

1098. Defendants intended for Plaintiff to rely on said misrepresentations and in so relying, Plaintiff did so, reasonably and justifiably.

1099. That as a result of the misrepresentations and Plaintiff’s reliance thereon, she entered into a franchise agreement with the franchisor.  That as a direct and proximate result of the misrepresentations of the Defendants, Plaintiff sustained damage.

WHEREFORE, for the foregoing reasons, Plaintiff prays judgment against Defendants, and each of them, in a sum that is fair and reasonable in excess of $25,000.00, her costs herein expended, and for such other relief the Court deems just and proper.

COUNT 106: SONIA SHARP

BREACH OF CONTRACT

COMES NOW, Sonia Sharp and for her cause of action against Defendants, states as follows:

1100. Plaintiff realleges and incorporates by reference as a fully set forth herein of each and every allegation contained in Paragraphs 1 through 114 of the Petition for Damages. 

1101. That Plaintiff, Sonia Sharp, and Defendant, Contours Express, LLC, entered into a written franchise agreement concerning the operation of her location.  

1102. That pursuant to that franchise agreement, franchisor agreed to provide pre-opening and post-opening support.  

1103. That franchisor did not use reasonable efforts to help Plaintiff analyze and evaluate a proposed site for her location.

1104. That franchisor did not consult and advise Plaintiff on her site selection, failed to procure any necessary licenses or permits, failed to assist in ordering any initial inventory other than equipment, and failed to manage construction and refurbishing of the franchise location.

1105. That franchisor failed to make any periodic visits to Plaintiff’s location for consultation, assistance, or guidance.

1106. That Defendants, in fact, failed to provide any guidance, assistance, or other resources to assist Plaintiff in the operation of her location.

1107. That Defendants breached their contract with Plaintiff in additional respects including, the implied covenant of good faith and fair dealing.  

1108. That as a direct and proximate result of the breach of Defendants as aforesaid, Plaintiff sustained damage.


WHEREFORE, for the foregoing reasons, Plaintiff prays judgment against Defendants, and each of them, in a sum that is fair and reasonable in excess of $25,000.00, her costs herein expended, and for such other relief that the Court deems just and proper.

COUNT 107: TORI AND JASON EVANS
FRAUD IN THE INDUCEMENT


COME NOW, Tori and Jason Evans and for their cause of action against Defendants, states as follows:

1109. Plaintiffs reallege and incorporate herein by reference each and every allegation contained in Paragraphs 1 through 114 of the Petition for Damages.

1110. That Tori and Jason Evans bought and operated a Contours Express franchise located at 1561 Potomac Ave, Hagerstown, MD  21742.  

1111. That prior to Plaintiffs purchasing their location, they had discussions with certain representatives of the franchisor.

1112. That in January of 2006, Plaintiffs were provided with a UFOC by Defendants.

1113. That said UFOC made certain claims as to the expenses required to open and operate a franchise location.  

1114. That the start up costs for the Plaintiffs location were nearly double the start up costs stated in the UFOC.

1115. That said representation within the UFOC were false and Defendants knew them to be false.  

1116. Defendants intended for Plaintiffs to rely on said misrepresentations and in so relying, Plaintiffs did so, reasonably and justifiably.

1117. That as a result of the misrepresentations and Plaintiffs’ reliance thereon, they entered into a franchise agreement with the franchisor.  That as a direct and proximate result of the misrepresentations of the Defendants, Plaintiffs sustained damage.

WHEREFORE, for the foregoing reasons, Plaintiffs pray judgment against Defendants, and each of them, in a sum that is fair and reasonable in excess of $25,000.00, their costs herein expended, and for such other relief the Court deems just and proper.

COUNT 108: TORI AND JASON EVANS

BREACH OF CONTRACT

COMES NOW, Tori and Jason Evans and for their cause of action against Defendants, states as follows:

1118. Plaintiffs reallege and incorporate by reference as a fully set forth herein of each and every allegation contained in Paragraphs 1 through 114 of the Petition for Damages.

1119. That Plaintiffs, Tori and Jason Evans, and Defendant, Contours Express, LLC, entered into a written franchise agreement concerning the operation of their location.

1120. That pursuant to that franchise agreement, franchisor agreed to provide pre-opening and post-opening support.  

1121. That Defendants failed to provide any assistance to Plaintiffs in the selection of the site of their franchise.

1122. That franchisor failed to make any periodic visits to Plaintiffs’ location for consultation, assistance, or guidance.

1123. That, in fact, Defendants failed to provide any guidance, assistance, or other resources to assist Plaintiffs in the operation of their location.

1124. That Defendants breached their contract with Plaintiffs in additional respects including, the implied covenant of good faith and fair dealing.  

1125. That as a direct and proximate result of the breach of Defendants as aforesaid, Plaintiffs sustained damage.


WHEREFORE, for the foregoing reasons, Plaintiffs pray judgment against Defendants, and each of them, in a sum that is fair and reasonable in excess of $25,000.00, their costs herein expended, and for such other relief that the Court deems just and proper.

COUNT 109: GREAT LIFE, INC
FRAUD IN THE INDUCEMENT


COME NOW, Great Life, Inc and for its cause of action against Defendants, states as follows:

1126. Plaintiff realleges and incorporates herein by reference each and every allegation contained in Paragraphs 1 through 114 of the Petition for Damages.

1127. That Great Life, Inc bought and operated a Contours Express franchise located at Kempsville Road, Suite 107, Virginia Beach, VA  23464.  

1128. That prior to purchasing its location, Plaintiff by and through its representatives, Rebecca and Charles Plate, had discussions with John Hartline, an area developer who was an authorized representative of the franchisor concerning the location of the franchise unit.

1129. That Plaintiff inquired from Mr. Hartline as to what the franchise would cost, and he stated that it would cost approximately $50,000 until Plaintiff would be profitable.

1130. That Mr. Hartline further stated that to be profitable a club would need approximately 200 members.

1131. That said discussions occurred in ladder part of 2003.

1132. That Plaintiff was provided with a UFOC in the ladder part of 2003.

1133. That said UFOC made certain claims as to the expenses required to operate a franchise location.  

1134. That said representation within the UFOC and made by Mr. Hartline were false and Defendants knew them to be false.  

1135. Defendants intended for Plaintiff to rely on said misrepresentations and in so relying, Plaintiff did so, reasonably and justifiably.

1136. That as a result of the misrepresentations and Plaintiff’s reliance thereon, it entered into a franchise agreement with the franchisor.  That as a direct and proximate result of the misrepresentations of the Defendants, Plaintiff sustained damage.

WHEREFORE, for the foregoing reasons, Plaintiff prays judgment against Defendants, and each of them, in a sum that is fair and reasonable in excess of $25,000.00, its costs herein expended, and for such other relief the Court deems just and proper.

COUNT 110: GREAT LIFE, INC

BREACH OF CONTRACT

COMES NOW, Great Life, Inc and for its cause of action against Defendants, states as follows:

1137. Plaintiff realleges and incorporates by reference as a fully set forth herein of each and every allegation contained in Paragraphs 1 through 114 of the Petition for Damages.

1138. That Plaintiff, Great Life, Inc, and Defendant, Contours Express, LLC, entered into a written franchise agreement concerning the operation of its location.  

1139. That pursuant to that franchise agreement, franchisor agreed to provide pre-opening and post-opening support.  

1140. That franchisor did not use reasonable efforts to help Plaintiff analyze and evaluate a proposed site for its location.

1141. That franchisor did not consult and advise Plaintiff on its site selection, failed to procure any necessary licenses or permits, failed to assist in ordering any initial inventory other than equipment, and failed to manage construction and refurbishing of the franchise location.

1142. That franchisor failed to make any periodic visits or inspected to Plaintiff’s location for consultation, assistance, or guidance on operational problems.

1143. That, in fact, Defendants failed to provide any guidance, assistance, or other resources to assist Plaintiff in the operation of its location.

1144. That Defendants breached their contract with Plaintiff in additional respects including, the implied covenant of good faith and fair dealing.  

1145. That as a direct and proximate result of the breach of Defendants as aforesaid, Plaintiff sustained damage.


WHEREFORE, for the foregoing reasons, Plaintiff prays judgment against Defendants, and each of them, in a sum that is fair and reasonable in excess of $25,000.00, its costs herein expended, and for such other relief that the Court deems just and proper.

COUNT 111: BRENDIA FINK-FRANKLIN
FRAUD IN THE INDUCEMENT


COMES NOW, Brendia Fink-Franklin and for her cause of action against Defendants, states as follows:

1146. Plaintiff realleges and incorporates herein by reference each and every allegation contained in Paragraphs 1 through 114 of the Petition for Damages.

1147. That Brendia Fink-Franklin bought and operated a Contours Express franchise located at 5654 Mayberry Square, Sylvania, OH  43560.  

1148. That prior to purchasing her location, Plaintiff had discussions with representatives of the Defendants.

1149. That prior to purchasing her franchise, it was represented to Plaintiff that she could successfully run her location with as little as 100 members and that approximate start up costs would be $25,000 to $35,000.

1150. That in the middle part of 2003, Plaintiff was provided with a UFOC by Defendants.

1151. That said UFOC made certain claims as to the expenses required to open and operate a franchise location. 

1152. That said representation within the UFOC and the representations of the representatives of the Defendants were false and Defendants knew them to be false.  

1153. Defendants intended for Plaintiff to rely on said misrepresentations and in so relying, Plaintiff did so, reasonably and justifiably.

1154. That as a result of the misrepresentations and Plaintiff’s reliance thereon, she entered into a franchise agreement with the franchisor.  That as a direct and proximate result of the misrepresentations of the Defendants, Plaintiff sustained damage.

WHEREFORE, for the foregoing reasons, Plaintiff prays judgment against Defendants, and each of them, in a sum that is fair and reasonable in excess of $25,000.00, her costs herein expended, and for such other relief the Court deems just and proper.

COUNT 112: BRENDIA FINK-FRANKLIN

BREACH OF CONTRACT

COMES NOW, Brendia Fink-Franklin and for her cause of action against Defendants, states as follows:

1155. Plaintiff realleges and incorporates by reference as a fully set forth herein of each and every allegation contained in Paragraphs 1 through 114 of the Petition for Damages.

1156. That Plaintiff, Brendia Fink-Franklin, and Defendant, Contours Express, LLC, entered into a written franchise agreement concerning the operation of her location.  

1157. That pursuant to that franchise agreement, franchisor agreed to provide opre-opening and post-opening support.  

1158. That franchisor did not use reasonable efforts to help Plaintiff analyze and evaluate a proposed site for her location.

1159. That franchisor did not consult and advise Plaintiff on her site selection, failed to procure any necessary licenses or permits, failed to assist in ordering any initial inventory other than equipment, and failed to manage construction and refurbishing of the franchise location.

1160. That franchisor failed to make any periodic visits to Plaintiff’s location for consultation, assistance, or guidance and did not assist Plaintiff at anytime regarding operational problems of her unit.

1161. That, in fact, Defendants failed to provide any guidance, assistance, or other resources to assist Plaintiff in the operation of her location.

1162. That Defendants breached their contract with Plaintiff in additional respects including, the implied covenant of good faith and fair dealing.  

1163. That as a direct and proximate result of the breach of Defendants as aforesaid, Plaintiff sustained damage.


WHEREFORE, for the foregoing reasons, Plaintiff prays judgment against Defendants, and each of them, in a sum that is fair and reasonable in excess of $25,000.00, her costs herein expended, and for such other relief that the Court deems just and proper.
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